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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Today is the

          3  Oversight Hearing on, basically, the pros and cons

          4  of the Taylor Law.  You know, is it a help or is it

          5  a hinderance when discussing the Taylor Law in

          6  reference to negotiations?  Is it an asset or a

          7  detriment to the employers or the employee?

          8                 The Taylor Law took effect in 1967

          9  and its proper name is the "Public Employees Fair

         10  Employment Act."  But how fair is it, is a question

         11  that will be raised today.  While the law forces

         12  employees not to strike during negotiations, after

         13  reading the Taylor Law, I'm convinced that it does

         14  not do enough to force the other side to negotiate,

         15  especially with the employer, in a timely manner.

         16                 The strength of the Taylor Law will

         17  also be questioned today.  Over the years, it has

         18  been tested and most recently has been scrutinized,

         19  as with last year's TWU strike. In it's place, is it

         20  to promote negotiations?  Is it to really promote

         21  negotiations and protect the parties, as well as the

         22  public, or merely just another piece of useless,

         23  weak legislation?

         24                 For the record, I just want to

         25  mention that both the Administration and members of
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          2  the Public Employees Relations Board, PERB, were

          3  invited today.  Unfortunately, they are not here.

          4  But, you know what? Although unfortunate, I am glad

          5  that we have the representatives of our work force

          6  to start this meeting off, as will probably be a

          7  first Hearing of many regarding the Taylor Law.  I

          8  think the labor view and perspective is a great one

          9  to start off with today.  So, I am pleased we have

         10  these witnesses to testify.

         11                 At this point, I also want to thank

         12  the Committee that's put this Hearing together, to

         13  my left, Joan Povolny, our Legislative Policy

         14  Analyst, to my right, Harold Gates, the Legal

         15  Counsel, my Legislative Aide, Steve Adnesio, Bob

         16  Newman, the Legislative Director, of course, the

         17  Sergeant- at- Arms, who are here today, making sure

         18  we have law and order in the room. Again, I

         19  appreciate you all being here today.

         20                 Our first panel will be Patrick

         21  Lynch, President of the New York State PBA, Michael

         22  Murray, from the PBA, is that correct? Right?

         23                 MR. MURRAY:  Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I know we have

         25  Bob Zinc (phonetic) here and?
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          2                 MR. ALEJANDRO:  Joe Alejandro

          3  (phonetic), I'm the Treasury with the PBA.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I appreciate

          5  your time here today.  Gentlemen, just state your

          6  name, if you speak, state your name for the record

          7  and please, Mr. Lynch.

          8                 MR. LYNCH:  Chairman, thank you for

          9  the opportunity to speak here today and thank your

         10  able staff for, obviously, putting this together for

         11  us and, of course, thank you to our union members,

         12  from all the organizations, that took the time to be

         13  here today.  Also with me, just for the record, we

         14  also have the First Vice- President, John Paglisi

         15  (phonetic), of the PBA and Mubarak Abdul Jabbar

         16  (phonetic), our Second Vice President of the

         17  Executive Board.

         18                 It's with some irony that we address

         19  this Committee today, almost 40 years to the day,

         20  that George W. Taylor and his committee submitted

         21  their famous report to Governor Rockefeller.  This

         22  report formed the basis for the New York State

         23  Taylor Law.  That report had, as its genesis and

         24  Governor Rockefeller's request, to make legislative

         25  proposals for protecting the public against
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          2  disruption of vital public services, while at the

          3  same time, protecting the rights of public

          4  employees.

          5                 The Taylor Committee Report

          6  organized, recognized that the right to withhold

          7  one's labor or the right to strike is recognized as

          8  an essential democratic right of employees in the

          9  private sector.  For a variety of reasons, the

         10  Taylor Law Committee found it inappropriate to grant

         11  public sector employees the right to strike, but in

         12  exchange, the Committee envisioned a system of

         13  effective, collective negotiations in the public

         14  service.

         15                 We're here this morning to tell you

         16  that the system of collective negotiations in this

         17  City is not effective and has not been effective for

         18  some time.

         19                 I'm obviously the President of a

         20  large union here in the City, the New York City

         21  Patrolmen's Benevolent Association, which, perhaps,

         22  has as much experience as any labor union in the

         23  state with the Taylor Law's impasse provisions.

         24                 In the last five rounds of

         25  bargaining, the PBA has invoked the impasse
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          2  procedures available to it under the Taylor Law four

          3  times.  The first two arbitrations were held under

          4  the rules of the City's Office of Collective

          5  Bargaining, as you know, OCB, while our two most

          6  recent interest arbitrations were held pursuant to

          7  the rules of the New York State Public Employees

          8  Relations Board, or better known as PERB.

          9                 Yet, after almost two decades of

         10  being compensated at levels far below our police

         11  counterparts in other jurisdictions, we sit here

         12  today, in the year 2006, still between 20 and 40

         13  percent behind other police jurisdictions that

         14  surround us in pay and in benefits.  We believe that

         15  fact, and others, suggest that collective bargaining

         16  in this state in broken.

         17                 First, I'd like to address why it is

         18  that we continue at the PBA to invoke the state's

         19  impasse procedure.

         20                 First, collective bargaining is non-

         21  existent in the City of New York, period.  The

         22  negotiation process in the City of New York has been

         23  reduced to the following scenario in round after

         24  round of bargaining:  The City will pick the union

         25  that will settle for the lowest amount and seek to
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          2  apply that settlement with little or no deviation to

          3  every other union in the City, without regard to the

          4  other unions' competitive standing in the area of

          5  compensation or other special circumstances similar

          6  to the NYPD.

          7                 I have never participated in a single

          8  negotiation with the City, where our compensation

          9  inadequacies were acknowledged by the City or where

         10  a solution was even considered. In other words, the

         11  City has never once, in the last 20 years, but

         12  certainly during my tenure of seven years at the

         13  helm of the PBA, negotiated in good faith with the

         14  Union and the question has to be asked, why?  The

         15  answer is very simple, it does not have to and given

         16  the current state of the Taylor Law, there is no

         17  risk to the City for negotiating in bad faith.

         18                 Four arbitration panels that have

         19  considered the question of police compensation have

         20  done little to correct our compensation

         21  inadequacies.  The first two arbitrations, under

         22  OCB, were little more than show proceedings, wasting

         23  millions in dollars of union resources, yet no

         24  serious consideration was given by the arbitration

         25  panel to the serious compensation issue it the
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          2  proceedings and presented in the evidence.

          3                 The OCB panel awarded the PBA exactly

          4  what the City offered to every other union in the

          5  City.  In one arbitration, no raise at all for two

          6  years, notwithstanding the wide gap in salaries

          7  between the NYPD and virtually every other police

          8  jurisdiction that surrounds us.  The OCB system of

          9  resolving impasses between union and management must

         10  also, must be accorded to blame for creating an

         11  environment where the City felt emboldened to offer

         12  City employees no raises at all for three and a half

         13  years in a five year period during the 1990's. In

         14  five years, City employees took three and a half

         15  years of no raise whatsoever.

         16                 In fact, Mayor Giuliani's own task

         17  force on New York Police Community Relations, which

         18  included the current Speaker of the Council,

         19  Christine Quinn, concluded that the OCB arbitration

         20  process and system was "a joke" and a "stacked deck"

         21  where City unions had never once prevailed.  Of 27

         22  cases before it, the City won 27 to nothing.

         23  Surely, George Taylor never contemplated the type of

         24  decisions we've received at OCB.

         25                 Because of the union's inability to
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          2  get a fair hearing at the Office of Collective

          3  Bargaining, the PBA spent the better part of a

          4  decade trying to have their contract arbitrations

          5  heard by a state agency, PERB.  As a result of

          6  legislation and a successful litigation that beat

          7  back the City's challenge of the Taylor Law's

          8  constitutionality, police and fire unions now have

          9  the right to have their contract arbitrations heard

         10  at PERB.

         11                 Since gaining that right, we've had

         12  two arbitrations at PERB, after rounds where the

         13  City, once again, refused to bargain in good faith.

         14  In our last round, even though police officers are

         15  substantially underpaid by market standards, the

         16  City again offered the PBA a zero raise for one of

         17  the years in that contract period.

         18                 Has the PERB forum resolved our

         19  compensation problems?  Obviously, the answer to

         20  that question is no.

         21                 While, clearly, better than the OCB

         22  system, in that arbitrators under PERB system have

         23  begun to compare New York City Police Officers'

         24  compensation to other police officers, instead of

         25  civilian workers and people working in other titles,
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          2  the gains have not yet even come close to fixing the

          3  pay gap between our police officers and those in

          4  other jurisdictions in any significant way.

          5                 In this last arbitration, the

          6  arbitrator even collaborated with the City in

          7  reducing starting salaries to a level not seen since

          8  the early 1980's.  This was done when even the

          9  Police Commissioner of this great police department

         10  was against those reductions.  There was no rational

         11  basis to award givebacks of any kind on the record

         12  in this arbitration, particularly where police

         13  officers had given tremendous productivity, with the

         14  loss of 4,000 police officers, while police services

         15  were enhanced and continue to be enhanced and our

         16  responsibilities are more and more by the day.

         17  There obviously is something wrong with this system.

         18                 As a result of four seriously flawed

         19  arbitration decisions, we are, again, in

         20  negotiations with the City of New York under

         21  circumstances where our pay is lagging significantly

         22  behind other jurisdictions.  As a result of these

         23  flawed decisions, the NYPD is suffering perhaps the

         24  greatest recruitment and retention crisis in its

         25  history and that affects every last one of us as
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          2  police officers, the citizens in our different

          3  districts and our children as well.

          4                 And at other negotiations, and if

          5  other negotiations or past bargaining practices of

          6  the City are any indication, it's looks like if we

          7  receive any offer at the bargaining table, it will

          8  be one for less than inflationary raises, at a time

          9  and in an environment where the City will have the

         10  largest budget surplus in history.  There is,

         11  obviously, something wrong with this system once

         12  again.

         13                 We are three negotiating sessions

         14  into this round, and we've seen no indication that

         15  the City is seriously looking to correct the most

         16  pressing of compensation issues.  Again, question,

         17  why?  Like OCB, there is no significant risk to the

         18  City from the PERB arbitration process.  It needs to

         19  be changed and made fair.

         20                 Another inequity foisted on the

         21  unions as a result of the Taylor Law inadequacies is

         22  the constant City delays in bargaining.  In our last

         23  two negotiation rounds, we have waited years for a

         24  new contract.  In 2000, our contract expired on July

         25  31st of 2000.  We did not receive a new contract,

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  which covered a two- year period ending July 31,

          3  2002, until September of 2004. Of course, by the

          4  time we received this new contract, it was already

          5  expired, back to the table.

          6                 In the next round, it was not until

          7  June 28th  '05 that we received a new two- year

          8  contract, almost three years after the expiration of

          9  our former contract.  By the time we received this

         10  contract, it also had been expired by almost a year.

         11                 What consequence will the City suffer

         12  for dragging it's feet?  None whatsoever.  In fact,

         13  the City will have the free use of police officers'

         14  and union members' money for years with no

         15  consequence whatsoever.  There is absolutely no

         16  incentive, presently, for the City to reach a speedy

         17  agreement or even a speedy impasse with a union.

         18  Instead, they're incentivized for not reaching a

         19  timely agreement.  That, too, needs changing.

         20                 In addition to the broken system of

         21  resolving disputes in negotiation, the system of

         22  resolving employer violations of the collective

         23  bargaining laws is also not functional, being

         24  steered entirely in the employers' favor, by an

         25  agency that does not even try to disguise its
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          2  partiality towards the City.

          3                 While it does not permit, while time

          4  does not permit me to recount all the shortcomings,

          5  and I'm sure you don't want me to, in resolving

          6  disputes where it is alleged that the employer

          7  violated the labor laws or committed an improper

          8  practice, as we call it, suffice to say, that OCB

          9  has failed to do honor to the Taylor Committee's

         10  injunction to protect and I quote "the rights of

         11  public employees."

         12                 We've talked here about some of the

         13  problems we face as unions in negotiations.  What

         14  are some of the reforms or changes that can help us

         15  move beyond it?  I have a list of reforms that

         16  should be considered by our state legislators.

         17                 One.  Arbitrators should render

         18  decisions based on the statutory criteria and based

         19  on the evidence presented, not what they believe

         20  parties would have done in bargaining.  The present

         21  system does not work in the City of New York,

         22  because the City would never voluntarily give one

         23  union more than another, despite variations in

         24  competitive standing between the various labor

         25  unions.  An arbitrator's role is not to placate the
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          2  City, but to apply fairly the statutory criteria.

          3  Fairly applied statutory criteria would produce

          4  awards that would encourage the City to bargain in

          5  good faith this round and rounds on into the future.

          6                 Second and very important.  Pattern

          7  bargaining as a method of bargaining should be

          8  declared unlawful and should not be accorded weight

          9  by any arbitration panel.  This concept, which has

         10  been relied upon by the City in various forms over

         11  the years to fit its own needs, not solve the

         12  problem, requires, in essence, that all unions be

         13  treated the same, regardless of competitive

         14  differences with the counterparts performing the

         15  same job in the same job title.

         16                 This is a bargaining practice that is

         17  largely unheard of around the country.  Speak to

         18  other labor professionals across the country, you

         19  literally have to explain what pattern bargaining

         20  is.  We believe pattern bargaining represents an

         21  example of not only bad faith bargaining, but worse

         22  yet, lazy bargaining, and has led to failures in

         23  collective bargaining and a crisis in the NYPD's

         24  recruitment and retention.

         25                 Third.  The City should be penalized
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          2  for dragging its feet in collective bargaining.  The

          3  City should be assessed an interest charge on the

          4  monies owed to public employees in the event

          5  contracts are not resolved in advance of expiration.

          6    We recommend that the statutory interest rate

          7  applied by the courts, which is nine percent, be

          8  assessed against the City on all monies owed to

          9  employees from the date of the expiration of their

         10  contract through the date of payment to the union

         11  member.  We are certain that such levies will result

         12  in contracts being settled on time.

         13                 Finally, OCB should be disband,

         14  period.  It has ceased serving any useful purpose in

         15  the City of New York.  It is an arm of the Mayor's

         16  Office of Labor Relations and it makes no attempt to

         17  hide that fact.  All proceedings should be

         18  administered by PERB.

         19                 While I'd be happy to go on further

         20  with other further suggestions of reforms, we'll

         21  gladly speak to the panel now or later with

         22  questions and answer any type of questions you may

         23  have.  I thank the panel for listening to me and

         24  allotting the time to me today and I thank my union

         25  members and fellow union leaders behind me that took
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          2  the time to be here today. I'll be happy to answer

          3  any questions now or on in the future.  I realize

          4  there's other people to speak after me.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I thank you

          6  very much for your time and testimony.  At this

          7  point, let me just welcome some of the colleagues

          8  who are with us today, a Member of this Committee,

          9  Melissa Mark Viverito, thank you very much, and two

         10  of my colleagues, Melinda Katz and Robert Jackson,

         11  thank you very much for being here.

         12                 Before I get to any statements or

         13  questions from my colleagues, I, again, want to

         14  thank you for your time and testimony.  I, too, like

         15  yourself, have found that when reading the Taylor

         16  Law, it's very language specific in certain parts.

         17  But, then comes that language of good faith, which I

         18  always found very arbitrary.  Based on your

         19  testimony, it's interesting to hear that that's been

         20  your experience as well.  That, basically, you know,

         21  you know what your role is, based on the Taylor Law,

         22  what you're not supposed to do, yet forced to

         23  negotiate.  But, you have never found any force on

         24  the other side, forcing somebody to the table to,

         25  again, negotiate in good faith.
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          2                 MR. LYNCH:  Absolutely.  Look, the

          3  best place to get a contract and after going through

          4  all these arbitrations both at OCB and up at PERB,

          5  the best place to get a contract is at the

          6  bargaining table.  For that to be effective, we have

          7  to have someone bargaining on the opposite side of

          8  the table, not to make some theory, like pattern

          9  bargaining work, but, more importantly, to solve a

         10  problem.

         11                 We have a recruitment and retention

         12  problem in the NYPD.  The raises should reflect that

         13  problem and, more importantly, fix that problem, not

         14  only for my members in my union, but those citizens

         15  in the City that expect staffing levels to be

         16  appropriate out in the neighborhoods.  If we do not

         17  raise the salary, especially top pay of New York

         18  City Police Officers, we are going to continue to

         19  see a recruitment problem.  No one wants to come on

         20  this job and make a substandard wage with no light

         21  at the end of the tunnel.

         22                 A young police officer would come on

         23  this job, or a candidate, I should say, would come

         24  on this job at a lower starting pay.  If they looked

         25  out a couple years and said, there's light at the
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          2  end of the tunnel, I'll make a different wage.  For

          3  example, Nassau County Police Department starts less

          4  than us, $21,000.00.  But, they go up to $90,000.00.

          5    Light at the end of the tunnel, eat pasta for a

          6  couple of years, live in your parent's basement,

          7  sacrifice.  Absolutely.  But, there has to be a

          8  goal.

          9                 With the City's way of bargaining,

         10  pattern bargaining, one size fits all, it doesn't

         11  work, it creates problems.  We want to do it at the

         12  table, but the City has to come to the table to do

         13  that, there's no penalty against them.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  At this point,

         15  any questions or statements from my colleagues?

         16  Council Member Robert Jackson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         18  Chair Addabbo. Thank you for allowing me the

         19  opportunity to be a part of this. I want to thank

         20  the representatives of the PBA that are here and Mr.

         21  President for giving your testimony.  I have some

         22  experience with the Taylor Law, because in my former

         23  capacity, I was the Director of Field Services for a

         24  labor union, the New York State Public Employees

         25  Federation.  Let me just say that right up front, so
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          2  both management and labor in the room clearly knows

          3  where I'm coming from.

          4                 Let me ask a couple of questions.

          5  You said that you feel that on behalf of your union,

          6  that the Office of Collective Bargaining should be

          7  disbanded and outlawed, in essence.  Is that based

          8  on what you want to see or based on the fact that

          9  from an historical perspective, from your labor

         10  union, you have not seen them to be fair and just?

         11                 MR. LYNCH:  History dictates that it

         12  needs to be stopped.  Of 27 cases brought before it,

         13  the City has won 27 to nothing.  Where is the

         14  impartiality?  Where is the looking at the evidence

         15  presented, looking at the problems the different

         16  agencies face and trying to fix that problem?  They

         17  go in, they say one union got this raise, whether it

         18  fixes the problem in your agency or not, you must

         19  get the same.

         20                 They must twiddle their thumbs, not

         21  listen to the evidence and just rule according to

         22  pattern bargaining.  The point of bargaining is to

         23  solve problems, as well as pay our members.  We're

         24  willing to do that with the City.  We have not seen

         25  that happen in OCB.  Those numbers speak to it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now, the, I

          3  believe they're referees or arbitrators, what is the

          4  title?

          5                 MR. LYNCH:  Arbitrators, yeah.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Their

          7  appointed by whom?

          8                 MR. LYNCH:  Their appointed, they're

          9  an arm of the City.  They're appointed by the City

         10  and partially by the unions, but the panel you're

         11  looking at has to be expanded to make it fair.

         12  Again, there has to be a penalty.  There cannot be

         13  working, living in the Office of Collective

         14  Bargaining of the City relying on them for

         15  everything, including computers --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

         17                 MR. LYNCH:  -- And then come back and

         18  say they're going to be impartial with an impartial

         19  panel that looks at the evidence.  They should sit

         20  as judges, when they sit behind that table.  We'll

         21  present our side, the City will present their side.

         22  Then, come up with a resolution that solves the

         23  problem.  That has not happened in OCB.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And you've

         25  said that as far as your concerned, concerning your
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          2  union, the contracts that have expired, and I've

          3  been a witness of this as a Member of the City

          4  Council, knowing that, for example, I think the last

          5  time you agreed upon a contract, the contract that

          6  you agreed upon had already expired, so --

          7                 MR. LYNCH:  Right, by three years.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- In

          9  essence, you were dealing with, even though you had

         10  retroactively agreed to a contract, the time frame

         11  had already gone way past its time.

         12                 MR. LYNCH:  Absolutely and --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That, to me,

         14  that's just absolutely ridiculous that it takes so

         15  long in order to negotiate an agreement.  I mean,

         16  from my lay person's understanding as a labor

         17  relations, you go from where you were, you talk

         18  about the issues and concerns and you resolve those

         19  issues and concerns and you come to an agreement.

         20  But, that doesn't go on for two or three years.

         21  That doesn't help anyone.  It doesn't help the

         22  people that you represent.  It doesn't help the

         23  people of New York City, in my opinion.  So, am I

         24  right or am I wrong on that?

         25                 MR. LYNCH:  You're absolutely right
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          2  and the issue is clear and the answer is just as

          3  clear.  Right now, there's zero penalty on the City

          4  for not negotiating in good faith.  So, basic

          5  economics, they hold onto your money, the City holds

          6  that money and earns interest on it.  The employees,

          7  our police officers in my case, don't have the

          8  opportunity to use that money.  There's zero penalty

          9  on the City's side to move the process along and

         10  they're making money because of that interest.

         11                 If there was a penalty, it would take

         12  the profit off the City's side of the table, you

         13  will see resolve to contract disputes much, much

         14  faster.  Three years without a contract, waiting,

         15  going through the slow process, is just wrong. We're

         16  talking about union members, residents of the City

         17  that need to put food on their table.

         18                 In our case, you're talking about

         19  police officers who literally, and I'm not saying

         20  this because it's a cliche', it's something you say

         21  because you proudly wear the shield, our police

         22  officers go out and literally lay down their lives.

         23  They should be afforded a quality of life at their

         24  kitchen table, just like we've brought in the City

         25  of New York on the streets.  The way you do that is
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          2  by paying them effectively and not making them wait.

          3    A penalty on the City side will move the process

          4  along.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now, do you

          6  believe that, so I think that you had suggested in

          7  your testimony that all of these cases should go

          8  directly to PERB, is that correct?

          9                 MR. LYNCH:  Absolutely.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Which is the

         11  New York State Public Employment --

         12                 MR. LYNCH:  Employees --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Relations

         14  Board.

         15                 MR. LYNCH:  -- Relations Board,

         16  right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Do you

         18  believe that PERB, the New York State Public

         19  Relations Board, operates efficiently and

         20  effectively or do you believe that's the best of,

         21  the lesser of the two evils?

         22                 MR. LYNCH:  Your latter.  It's better

         23  than what we've had.  There's problems that need to

         24  be resolved.  But, in our experience, we're much

         25  further ahead because of PERB than we would have
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          2  otherwise.  But, we'd all be further ahead if we

          3  were able to do it at the table.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right, no, I

          5  would agree with that.  But, quite frankly, when

          6  PERB rendered that decision that said that starting

          7  police officers, recruits, would earn $25,000.00,

          8  that was, in my opinion, so absolutely ridiculous in

          9  that if, and I think I read or someone told me, that

         10  the next class for the examination, the numbers of

         11  individuals interested in taking the exam for police

         12  officers dropped dramatically because the salary was

         13  not even enough for someone to live off.

         14                 I mean, $25,000.00, mind you, there

         15  are many people in New York City that are scraping

         16  by, scraping by off $25,000.00 a year.  But, for a

         17  position where your life can be taken away like

         18  that, that is clearly outrageous and many of these

         19  people, in many people opinions, many citizens of

         20  our great City, that is absolutely ridiculous.  So,

         21  do you think that even knowing that PERB, I think,

         22  recommended that, you're still willing to go to

         23  PERB, rather than OCB?

         24                 MR. LYNCH:  Let me go back a little

         25  bit in that process and bring you inside the room
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          2  and inside our hearing rooms during that PERB

          3  process.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          5                 MR. LYNCH:  The arbitrator came up

          6  with a $25,100.00 starting salary and what he had to

          7  do and the panel had to do, is base their decision

          8  on the evidence presented.  In reality, the City of

          9  New York not only wanted to lower the starting

         10  salary and they did not want to lower it to

         11  $25,100.00, they wanted to lower it to $23,000.00 --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  20 what?

         13                 MR. LYNCH:  -- So, you have witness

         14  upon witness from the City side, raising a hand,

         15  swearing under oath, testifying that there is not a

         16  recruitment and retention problem, that people are

         17  staying, the numbers haven't changed and on top of

         18  that, saying, we can take a $23,000.00 salary.  So,

         19  where is the arbitration panel supposed to go but to

         20  the evidence, the evidence presented by the City

         21  said there's not a problem, which we know there is,

         22  and said they'll lower the starting salary even less

         23  to $23,000.00.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But, the

         25  minimum requirements for the job, I think you have
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          2  to have a minimum of 60 college credits in order to

          3  enter into the class, is that correct?

          4                 MR. LYNCH:  Yes, absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, that's

          6  like having, at the minimum, an associates degree

          7  from a school and they, the City, said that

          8  $23,000.00 as a starting salary would be sufficient

          9  enough to recruit?  Who they going to be recruiting?

         10                 MR. LYNCH:  Look, in the past there's

         11  been panels that have heard this issue different

         12  times and Council Hearings, I'm sure in the past.

         13  One of them came up with the problems that are

         14  there, they said to change the NYPD for the better,

         15  you need a more mature police officer.  So, what

         16  they did is they raised the starting age.  When I

         17  came on, I came on at age 20.  It's hard to believe,

         18  but yes.  So, we came in at 20.  So, they raised the

         19  age.

         20                 They said, raise the educational

         21  requirement.  So, they did.  Again, when I came on,

         22  high school diploma.  Now, you need a college

         23  degree.  They did number two.  The third thing that

         24  the panel said needed to be done, is to raise the

         25  salaries to market rate.  The City raised the age,
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          2  they raised the educational requirement and they

          3  lowered the pay.  Why?  There's zero incentive for

          4  them to negotiate to solve problems for each union.

          5  It's about the bottom line.  It's not about the

          6  safety of the public and it's certainly not about

          7  the safety of the men and women that wear the shield

          8  on their chest.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, what do

         10  you think, what suggestions, I know that you've

         11  mentioned some things, but what do you think, what

         12  would you like for us to do?  If you had your way

         13  right now, what message would you want me to give to

         14  my colleagues in the City Council that are not

         15  present here right now?

         16                 MR. LYNCH:  The Taylor Law has to be

         17  fixed, it's one- sided.  Right now, it's all sided

         18  towards the union.  Part of the agreement, towards

         19  the City, I apologize.  One of the things they have

         20  said is, look, we don't want the people of the City

         21  to have to go through any work stoppages, whether

         22  it's police or any other agency that may be behind

         23  me.  Rightfully so, fair enough.

         24                 But, then they said there has to be

         25  fairness here. There is no penalty on the City.  So,
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          2  there's zero incentive for them to move forward, but

          3  our members continue to get hurt, the people of the

          4  City.  It's unfair.  If we're going to be penalized

          5  for having to take that step of a job action or a

          6  strike or anything like that, where is the penalty

          7  on the behalf of the City for not coming to the

          8  table in the first place, being responsible for

          9  pushing a union to the brink, where they have a

         10  responsibility to their members, for their members

         11  to do better and bring back a reasonable contract?

         12  We have that responsibility.  The City has a

         13  responsibility on the City side not to push us so

         14  far along, where it creates a strike or conflict

         15  within any rank of any union.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, let me

         17  play devil's advocate for a minute.  My colleagues

         18  would say, well wait a minute, the Taylor Law is not

         19  the City's law.  That's the state law.  So, how can

         20  we affect the change at the state level?

         21                 MR. LYNCH:  Well, basic

         22  recommendations, just as a basis, what you can do

         23  legally, your Council can say.  But, on a basis,

         24  recommendations from a panel of City Council people,

         25  from this Committee and this Chairman, to say these
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          2  problems need to be fixed.  Why?  Because it's

          3  starting to affect the constituents in my individual

          4  districts and the citizens of the City as a

          5  collective, as well as the union members.

          6                 Why is it creating a problem?  We

          7  cannot and will not be able to recruit enough police

          8  officers to come onto this job.  That's problem

          9  number one.  Problem number two is our veteran

         10  police officers are leaving in droves.  There's very

         11  few that stay beyond 20 years.  Why is that a

         12  problem?  Obviously, for staffing levels out in our

         13  neighborhoods, but also for experience.  Even if you

         14  did fix the front end, as we say, and bring in new

         15  recruits, who is going to teach them?  Being a New

         16  York City Police Officer is learned on the street,

         17  being taught by a senior member, teaching the

         18  younger member how to do their job.  If our veteran

         19  officers are gone, who will teach our younger police

         20  officers?

         21                 There's a staffing problem in the

         22  NYPD.  My local community, out in the 111 Precinct,

         23  where I was proud to grow up and still reside with

         24  my family, on a Thursday night, with its restaurant

         25  strip on Bell Boulevard, it's a huge area of a
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          2  number of miles, one of the largest precincts in the

          3  City, on a Thursday night, club night, two sectors

          4  working that entire precinct. That's four police

          5  officers for all that area.

          6                 The public is not safe, it's a

          7  staffing problem. You fix the staffing problem

          8  paying competitive market rate salaries.  People

          9  want to follow their passion into law enforcement

         10  and they want to do it in the NYPD.  We have to give

         11  them a reason.  Right now, they're going to the Port

         12  Authority, right down the block.  $20,000.00 more to

         13  start.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  To start.

         15                 MR. LYNCH:  Nassau and Suffolk,

         16  going, starting less than us, but rapidly going to

         17  $90,000.00.  Westchester County, State Troopers,

         18  when I came on the job 22 years ago, we were about

         19  $5,000.00 below what other agencies are getting

         20  paid. Far below State Troopers in Westchester.  In

         21  that time period, we're close to 40 and 50 percent

         22  behind those same agencies. Those zeros killed us.

         23  We have to fix the problem if we want to keep the

         24  people in the City safe.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, and I
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          2  remember with, you know, I Chair the Education

          3  Committee and the issue before was that teacher's

          4  salaries were not competitive to the surrounding

          5  area in order to recruit and retain good quality

          6  teachers.  In essence, there's no real incentive to

          7  come to New York City to teach because, from a

          8  salary point of view, and then if you're, as far as

          9  parking, if you're driving in, and then with schools

         10  being broken, you know, that's why we have this

         11  court order now for about $23 billion, so there was

         12  no incentive.

         13                 So, with respect to the NYPD, you're

         14  saying that the salaries, the starting salaries and

         15  even the average salary and even the max salary is

         16  less than the entire surrounding counties, Nassau,

         17  Suffolk, Westchester, probably even in New Jersey,

         18  am I right or wrong?

         19                 MR. LYNCH:  Absolutely correct.

         20  Salary- wise, the NYPD, salary- wise, is a laughing

         21  stock.  Younger people are taking their experience,

         22  that college education, and going to other

         23  departments.  When I came on the job, you planned on

         24  staying 20, there used to be a saying 20 and out.

         25  But, in reality, we stay 30 years.  We love the job.
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          2    We love doing it. There's no incentive for that to

          3  happen, so they're leaving in droves.

          4                 Younger police officers now are

          5  coming on this job, using NYPD as a resume builder

          6  to say they were trained here in the NYPD, but now

          7  they're serving other communities.  We're spending

          8  millions of dollars to train, equip and put our

          9  police officers on the street.  They're taking that

         10  experience, because of monetary reasons, their own

         11  kitchen table, their own quality of life, taking

         12  that experience and serving other communities.

         13                 I live in this great City.  I don't

         14  want that to happen.  I want my neighbors to be New

         15  York City Police Officers, but they can't afford to

         16  buy a house there.  They can't afford to move

         17  outside, out of their parent's basement.  That's not

         18  a younger police officer, that's a senior police

         19  officer.  We need to change it.  That's the way we

         20  fix the problem.

         21                 Look, New York City Police Officers

         22  brought about the renaissance of this City in

         23  conjunction with our partners in labor.  We need now

         24  to benefit from that renaissance and we cannot allow

         25  it to slip backwards.  That will happen.  I don't
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          2  want to be the doomsday person.  I want to be the

          3  person that helps resolve the problem.  There are

          4  not enough police officers on the street.

          5                 Police officers are getting hurt in

          6  record numbers now.  The citizens, if we're not safe

          7  as police officers because of the staffing problem,

          8  how safe are my children?  How safe is my bride?

          9  How safe is my father and mother who live in that

         10  neighborhood?  The staffing is inadequate.  It's

         11  inadequate because of the salary.  The salary needs

         12  to be fixed.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I want to

         14  thank you and the other representatives in speaking

         15  on behalf of your membership.  I think that,

         16  clearly, I do not disagree with you. Let me just say

         17  right up front.  I think that the Taylor Law needs

         18  to be disbanded totally and we need to start anew.

         19                 Clearly, collective bargaining in New

         20  York City leaves everything to be desired because

         21  from a legislative point of view, I have seen almost

         22  every union, no matter what union you're talking

         23  about, not have a contract on time.

         24                 There was one union, I think Local

         25  1707 of AFSCME, which they dealt with, I think child
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          2  care, they were without a contract for four years,

          3  totally unacceptable.  They were outside City Hall

          4  in the summer, in the winter, in the fall, and the

          5  summer and the winter and the fall --

          6                 MR. LYNCH:  It's crazy.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- I'm

          8  talking about year after year after year, trying to

          9  communicate, and these are some of the people that

         10  are paid at the range of $18,000.00 to $27,000.00

         11  and without a contract for four years.

         12                 So, let me just say that you have,

         13  you and all of the labor union has a friend in me

         14  with respect to ensuring that the City of New York

         15  bargain in good faith and to resolve contract

         16  disputes immediately and not drag it on for years

         17  and years until, for example, in an election year,

         18  where the Mayor, whether it's this Mayor or any

         19  other Mayor, it doesn't really matter, whoever's the

         20  Chief Executive of our great City, only waiting

         21  until an election year in order to try to negotiate

         22  and sign off on a contract.  That's not the way that

         23  we run our City and that's not good business.  Mr.

         24  Chair, I want to thank you very much for giving me

         25  the opportunity.
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          2                 MR. LYNCH:  Council Member, thank you

          3  for your voice and never stop talking out.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          5  much Council Member Jackson and, Mr. Lynch, thanking

          6  you for kicking off this Hearing.  You know, what

          7  this Committee is going to do is basically culminate

          8  all the testimony that's given today.  But, what the

          9  City Council, what I'd like the City Council to do,

         10  is, you know, either in the form of a Resolution,

         11  you know, work with our legislative counterparts up

         12  in Albany, to address these issues of fairness,  You

         13  know, what it means to actually negotiate in good

         14  faith, do what we can to address these issues and,

         15  need be, do the changes that need to be effected.

         16  So, I thank you very much for your time and

         17  testimony today and the members of the PBA, thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 MR. LYNCH:  Mr. Chairman, staff, as

         20  well as fellow Council Members, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you.  Our

         22  next witness to come to the stand is Randi

         23  Weingarten, President of UFT. While Ms. Weingarten

         24  is coming up, I just want to read the statement

         25  submitted to me by the Administration.  Again, they
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          2  were invited today, but, unfortunately, could not be

          3  here today. So, in a letter signed by James Hanley,

          4  Commissioner of Office of Labor Relations, I will

          5  read, in part, it is the Administration's position

          6  that the Taylor Law has been effective over the

          7  years in helping to foster harmonious labor

          8  relations, while simultaneously protecting both

          9  employer and employee rights.  The Administration

         10  would oppose any legislation that attempts to

         11  diminish or dilute the positive effects that this

         12  law has had in the area of labor relations.

         13                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  What a shocker.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good opening

         15  for you Randi. Thank you for being here today --

         16                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  -- And for your

         18  time and testimony.

         19                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Thank you Council

         20  Member and Chair Addabbo, thank you Council Member

         21  Viverito and thank you for coming up to Albany with

         22  us that day, and thank you Council Member Jackson

         23  and we are still celebrating that when we work

         24  together, as opposed to, on issues like collective

         25  bargaining, when we work together as we did, the
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          2  Council, the UFT, parents and the Administration, we

          3  finally broke through on a pretty big victory in

          4  Albany this week with the capital plan.

          5                 I have written testimony.  I

          6  actually, after hearing Patty's testimony, we'll

          7  make a suggestion at the end about a fix that I

          8  hadn't thought about until Patty talked beforehand.

          9  I, you all know I am the head of the Municipal Labor

         10  Committee, as well as the President of the United

         11  Federation of Teachers.  Today, I am speaking as

         12  only the President of the UFT, because I have not

         13  shared my testimony with other labor unions and so I

         14  want to be very careful in terms of that capacity.

         15                 The Taylor Law is in need of repair.

         16  In this new world, where the quality of the work

         17  force means more than anything in the effective

         18  delivery of public services, the Taylor Law does not

         19  strike the proper balance between government and its

         20  employees.  Instead, we have a process that is

         21  stacked against the workers and, therefore, one that

         22  demoralizes them more and more, rather than spurring

         23  them to do the best that they can possibly do in

         24  this new world order.

         25                 The Taylor Law presumes good faith
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          2  negotiations, but it provides no incentive for

          3  public employers to negotiate timely contracts.  Pat

          4  Lynch already talked about that extensively.  Our

          5  experiences are no different.  The Law has allowed

          6  the City to impose pattern bargaining, as they

          7  define pattern bargaining, sometimes it's lock step,

          8  sometimes it's not so lock step, but they get to

          9  decide not only who they negotiate with first, but

         10  what that deal then means second.

         11                 So, they get to decide both pattern

         12  bargaining and what pattern bargaining means, and

         13  what it does for everyone else, is it offers little,

         14  if any, opportunity for unions to negotiate a

         15  contract tailored to the particular needs of their

         16  members or the services they deliver.

         17                 I have negotiated many contracts in

         18  this pattern bargaining construct.  We have tried to

         19  be as creative as we can possibly be.  But, pattern

         20  bargaining, as the fundamental framework, as the

         21  dispositive condition, as the condition that trumps

         22  nothing else, pattern bargaining does not allow you,

         23  as a union leader, to negotiate a contract that is

         24  tailored to the needs of your members, or the

         25  services that you deliver.
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          2                 Through no fault of our own,

          3  municipal unions routinely go through two, three,

          4  sometimes four years without a contract and what are

          5  our possible remedies?  I love it when I hear, and I

          6  say this later on in my testimony, when we attempt

          7  to bring our case to the public?  The Mayor then

          8  gets mad at us for bringing that case to the public.

          9    If we attempt to do something that engages the

         10  Taylor Law, things get delayed and delayed even

         11  more.  When we would do something, such as the TWU

         12  did this year, you see the harsh penalties that are

         13  imposed on a labor union.

         14                 So, what is the remedy that we have

         15  when you have years and years go by without being

         16  able to negotiate a timely contract?  Why is a real

         17  timetable important?  Look what just happened in

         18  budget negotiations in the State Legislature this

         19  year -- thank you.  Because the state law makers

         20  wanted to have an on- time budget, they rolled up

         21  their sleeves and made the compromises necessary to

         22  reach a settlement, including the settlement on

         23  capital that we're all now celebrating.

         24                 A deadline creates the pressure to

         25  get to a settlement.  Without that pressure in

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  collective bargaining, the City has been able to

          3  impose its will on its workforce.  It is palpably

          4  unfair that the City does not have to engage in the

          5  give and take of real bargaining.

          6                 For example, in our last round,

          7  Chancellor Klein not once, never showed up at a

          8  single bargaining session.  His first appearance was

          9  before the PERB- Ordered fact finding panel, more

         10  than two years after the expiration of the

         11  agreement.  All the same time, the Chancellor had

         12  veto power.  So, he didn't have to engage in any

         13  give and take and yet, after you did that give and

         14  take, he had veto power.  That is not a level

         15  playing field.

         16                 The City's ability to endlessly stall

         17  without repercussions means that unions have

         18  virtually no leverage at the bargaining table and

         19  when, as I said before, unions turn to the dispute

         20  resolution processes available to them under the

         21  Taylor Law, arbitrators, time and again, have ruled

         22  that the pattern must prevail.  Pattern bargaining

         23  allows the City to contain its labor costs, but it

         24  creates a situation when an agreement that works for

         25  one union is imposed on all the others, regardless
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          2  of the particular needs and circumstances of their

          3  members.

          4                 So, in essence, the unions and our

          5  members get punched twice.  First, we have to wait

          6  for some, you know, mana from heaven to appear in

          7  order for there to be the circumstances to bargain a

          8  new contract.  Secondly, when we finally get serious

          9  or when they finally get serious about bargaining a

         10  new contract, the framework is constantly pattern

         11  bargaining.

         12                 Every UFT Department of Education

         13  contract since 1991 has been signed long after the

         14  prior contract's expiration. Teachers have to grade

         15  papers on time, like everybody else, they have to

         16  pay their bills on time.  Why shouldn't they be

         17  entitled to contracts signed on time?  It's an

         18  outrage, you hear it in my voice, that public

         19  employees in this City must routinely wait years and

         20  years and years and, as Pat Lynch said, there's no

         21  penalty on the public employer for that.

         22                 Our most recent contract was 27

         23  months late.  By then, Mayor Bloomberg had

         24  negotiated a wage increase with another large union

         25  that, as I said over and over again already, that
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          2  had a greater impact on our own contract's final

          3  terms, than anything that we were talking about in

          4  terms of education.

          5                 Let me just say this for a second,

          6  the City Council came up with a fantastic opinion,

          7  commission, report on how to implement CFE.  It had

          8  a lot in it about human resources, teacher quality.

          9  That report had no influence in the fact finding

         10  panel, even though that report was one of the best

         11  reports I've ever seen on implementing CFE.

         12                 The Court of Appeals of the State of

         13  New York, other courts of the State of New York had

         14  said, specifically, that teachers' salaries had to

         15  be raised to a competitive level in order to achieve

         16  a quality workforce.  Those reports had no influence

         17  in a fact finding proceeding, when they ought to

         18  have, if the delivery of services meant the most.

         19                 We saw and I saw, and maybe that's

         20  part of the reason why you see this frustration, I

         21  understood it was my obligation in both these last

         22  two rounds of bargaining, to try to get the salaries

         23  as high as I possibly could get them, because we

         24  knew the quality of a teacher in the classroom is

         25  the number one criteria if we want to help all kids
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          2  succeed.  So, I saw that as the union's burden and

          3  my personal burden and I don't like the way I had to

          4  do it.

          5                 We, in the last two contracts,

          6  increased teachers' salaries, the Mayor loves it, he

          7  talks about it all the time, teachers' salaries have

          8  been increased 33 to 37 percent, that's fantastic.

          9  We have almost closed that gap with the suburbs.

         10  But, in order for me to do that, teachers are in

         11  school 30 minutes more a day and have two more days

         12  of work before the summer ends.  Those are people

         13  who already spend as much time out of school as they

         14  spend in school doing the work in service of their

         15  kids.

         16                 We had to raise the salaries.  I am

         17  glad we did that.  That was a management and a labor

         18  need, as much a management need than a labor need,

         19  but because of pattern bargaining, we couldn't do it

         20  in the give and take that should have happened in

         21  terms of real collective bargaining.  We were

         22  hamstrung, or I was hamstrung, by pattern

         23  bargaining.  That is what is so wrong with pattern

         24  bargaining.

         25                 The, you see it, even after the 2002
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          2  agreement, we raised salaries of new teachers from

          3  $31,000.00 to $39,000.00 in 2002, in June of 2002.

          4  What then happened?  That summer, the number of

          5  uncertifieds went from 17 percent to two percent.

          6  You can't tell me that raising salaries don't

          7  matter.

          8                 Then, the flip side, this time

          9  around, is that even the unions said, we are not

         10  going backwards on teacher quality.  That's not who

         11  we are.  I have said to so many of you in this room,

         12  teacher quality means something to us.  But, when we

         13  said, as management did, we're not going backwards,

         14  we still had to find, we still had to find other

         15  equivalent productivity savings that hurt

         16  demoralization hugely to make so we could do what

         17  some of the other unions were able to do because

         18  morally we couldn't do it.  That is one of the

         19  reasons why pattern bargaining is so wrong.

         20                 I do not begrudge DC- 37 for coming

         21  up with the agreement that they needed to come up

         22  with.  It was good for their members.  It was not

         23  good for our members.  It should not have been the

         24  template that our members had to adhere to.  It

         25  should be every union has to adhere its own
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          2  balancing with the Mayor in collective bargaining.

          3                 Now, what do we do about this?  I

          4  think I've gone through enough of our process.  All

          5  the UFT and other municipal unions seek is a level

          6  playing field.  The Taylor Law can create an

          7  enforceable timetable and to make pattern bargaining

          8  one factor, not the preeminent factor.

          9                 Reform of the Taylor Law has been a

         10  top priority of the state's organized labor movement

         11  since at least 2000, when the state, AFLCIO, set up

         12  its Taylor Law task force to recommend changes in

         13  the Law.  Yet, year after year after year, every

         14  attempt to fix it has fallen victim to either

         15  Albany's gridlock or to what you heard what, what

         16  Councilman Addabbo just read beforehand, the Mayor's

         17  absolute, every Mayor's absolute obstinance (sic) to

         18  changing it.

         19                 Why wouldn't they be obstinate about

         20  changing it? When you have a law that is now so one-

         21  sided, favoring management, why would they want to

         22  change it?  Ultimately, what we have tried to do, is

         23  we have to tried to see if we could create some

         24  penalties on management for stalling.  Either

         25  penalties on them for stalling or mitigating the
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          2  penalties on the union if management stalls.

          3                 Last year, we actually tried

          4  something else.  The legislation we tried last year

          5  would have expedited the process for ending contract

          6  stalemates involving only City teachers and City

          7  principals.  What the bill did, was it established a

          8  real six month deadline on negotiations before state

          9  intervention and then escalating penalties against

         10  each side for failing to bargain in good faith.

         11                 It was neutral in terms of who was

         12  doing the stalling.  It said, whoever did the

         13  stalling, you're penalized after six months and the

         14  process of impasse just gets triggered. It was very

         15  modest and it provided a very modest fix.  Yet, the

         16  Governor vetoed the bill in December, in the middle

         17  of this strike, after the bill passed both houses of

         18  the legislature.

         19                 So, we are back at square one.

         20  Stalling is not a legitimate bargaining strategy.  I

         21  would argue to you it is not a legitimate public

         22  policy.  Second, pattern bargaining does not allow

         23  for a process of real give and take, which is the

         24  essence of productive negotiations.  We had, as Pat

         25  said, statutory criteria that are far better
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          2  templates than pattern bargaining and pattern

          3  bargaining you never see in the statutory criteria.

          4  It is something that has evolved.

          5                 So, what do we need?  We need a labor

          6  relations process that facilitates fair and timely

          7  collective bargaining agreements.  One that

          8  prevents, perhaps penalizes, stalling, and one that,

          9  second, de- emphasizes pattern bargaining.  So, what

         10  I would suggest is penalties for stalling as one

         11  common sense reform of the Taylor Law and, secondly,

         12  instead of having pattern bargaining as the

         13  preeminent unstatutory but statutory criteria,

         14  meaning, even though it's not in the statute,

         15  everybody uses it as the preeminent criteria.

         16                 If we need to have a preeminent

         17  criteria, make it a COLA.  Say that the preeminent

         18  criteria is that both parties have to do, have to

         19  say that at least each and every year there will be

         20  a cost of living increase and let them then bargain

         21  from that.  Those of us who want more, meaning who

         22  want to have competitive wages that are competitive

         23  with the suburbs, make us, force us to make our

         24  argument.  If the City wants less, force it to make

         25  its argument  But, let's start with a preeminent

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  criteria that is fair to both parties and that would

          3  be imposing or having in the statute itself a

          4  presumption of a COLA, as opposed to a presumption

          5  of pattern bargaining.

          6                 First and foremost, we need to fix

          7  the law.  We need to stop the stalling.  We have to

          8  make it fairer.  Let's have a presention (sic) of a

          9  COLA as opposed to pattern bargaining, because what

         10  I worry about more and more and more, is that with

         11  the frustration of our members, growing and growing

         12  and growing, people will, more and more, think about

         13  things that neither you nor I want them to think

         14  about, job stoppages, work stoppages and the like.

         15  Thank very, very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you Ms.

         17  Weingarten.  I really appreciate you being here

         18  today.   Again, I think the Committee would agree

         19  with you, that when we talk about the Public

         20  Employees Fair Employment Act, that we try and make

         21  it exactly that, fair, fair for both sides.  I'd

         22  love to work with you and others to ensure that by

         23  working with this legislature. Even if we have to

         24  form the basis and the foundation for that work this

         25  year and work with our next Governor, if that's what
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          2  it takes to get legislation passed on the state

          3  level.  So, that is something that we need to start

          4  maybe working on now in --

          5                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  -- Preparation

          7  for that, for that next Governor to work on.  The

          8  locks that pattern bargaining that you mentioned,

          9  again, it's quite clear that obviously when doing

         10  that, they lose the details that are pertinent to

         11  each contract negotiation.  So, obviously, that's a

         12  major issue that's going to have to be dealt with.

         13  So, again, I look forward to working with you on

         14  that.  Any comments or questions from my colleagues?

         15    Council Member Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         17  Thank you Mr. Chair and Randi, let me just say that

         18  I appreciate what you've done on behalf of the

         19  approximately 140,000 members that you represent,

         20  because, clearly, going back to the last contract,

         21  New York City, as you said, could not recruit and

         22  retain qualified teachers in order to educate our

         23  children.

         24                 In order to meet the court mandate,

         25  you have to have a workforce that is one, as they
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          2  say, that are certified and, you know, New York

          3  City, going years back, had an even higher

          4  percentage of uncertified teachers than the 17

          5  percent that you talked about.  But, the clear

          6  example of how money matters is that you said in

          7  your testimony, that the uncertified teachers at the

          8  time before that contract was 17 percent and after

          9  the beginning salary went up from I think you said

         10  $31,000.00 or $32,000.00 to $39,000.00, it dropped

         11  to two percent and that's clear on its face,

         12  statistically shows that money makes a difference.

         13  I understand, at that time that that starting salary

         14  of $39,000.00 was still below the metropolitan area,

         15  but not the huge gap it was before, but by a couple

         16  of thousand dollars, is that correct?

         17                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Correct.  Then, what

         18  we had done was, look, we, we take seriously our

         19  obligation to have a qualified workforce and, you

         20  know, if you have, if 90 percent of your workforce

         21  is qualified, but ten percent is not, then you are

         22  shortchanging those ten percent.  The kids who are

         23  in those ten percent of the classes.  So, that's why

         24  what we've always said is, you need a well prepared

         25  teacher for every child.
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          2                 But, it was really remarkable to see

          3  how we were, what created that 17 percent was that

          4  about half of our teachers each year were

          5  uncertified and you saw this immediate change that

          6  summer.  It was just remarkable, just from that one

          7  fix, from going from $31,000.00 to $39,000.00 and we

          8  did, that year, have a greater increase for new

          9  teachers than for the teachers who were in the

         10  system, thus, giving allay to the Chancellor who

         11  says, we do not believe in differentiation.

         12  Differentiation is important if there's a real

         13  reason for it, we will negotiate it.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I also

         15  believe, and correct me if I'm wrong, that the City

         16  was under a state mandate by a certain point in time

         17  to make sure that all of their teachers are

         18  certified --

         19                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Is that

         21  correct?

         22                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  When was

         24  that mandate? I'm sorry.

         25                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Isn't it amazing
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          2  that that mandate was required by September of  '03?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And when did

          4  you finalize?

          5                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  We finalized this

          6  contract, that first contract --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes.

          8                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  -- Or the contract

          9  that I'm talking about, June of  '02.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.  Now,

         11  you talked about pattern bargaining.  Now, did all

         12  of the labor unions in New York City say that, yes,

         13  we agree that we're going to do pattern bargaining

         14  with the City of New York?

         15                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  No, if all of the

         16  labor unions had agreed to pattern bargaining, then

         17  they would have been in coalition bargaining.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         19                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  They would have

         20  coalesced themselves and said, like we do in health

         21  bargaining, and in health bargaining, there have

         22  been far more innovative contracts than we have seen

         23  in sometimes in the regular main bargaining. But, if

         24  the unions had agreed, volitiony (sic), to pattern

         25  bargaining, you would have seen the unions together
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          2  saying, we form a coalition.  I'm not saying that's

          3  a bad idea.  Frankly, that's one of the things I

          4  think we should be doing, going forward given what

          5  the, you know, the state of the Taylor Law right

          6  now.  But, that's how you would have seen that

          7  volition expressed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But I think

          9  that the people that you represent, the majority of

         10  them, are teachers. Is that correct?

         11                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Correct.  80,000 of

         12  the 100,000 active employees are teachers.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  80,000 out

         14  of the, and then the members of the PBA, those are

         15  police officers, not even, no where near the same

         16  profession.  You agree?

         17                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And --

         19                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Equally important in

         20  different ways.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right,

         22  equally important. And the other unions,

         23  firefighters, are not police officers, but those are

         24  emergency responders, and the employees of DC- 37,

         25  those are, DC- 37 is an umbrella union, there's a
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          2  lot of locals within DC- 37 and they represent some

          3  emergency EMT workers and other emergency workers

          4  and they also represent some school employees and I

          5  think municipal employees --

          6                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Over,

          8  across all agencies and Departments, but I don't,

          9  and some comparisons I guess you can make a

         10  comparison for some locals within DC- 37 to

         11  emergency workers and to teachers or people that are

         12  working in the schools.  But, how do you then, if

         13  there's not agreement for coalition bargaining, how

         14  do you break then the cycle of pattern bargaining,

         15  not pattern bargaining, because if you say, if I say

         16  the word pattern bargaining, you would think that

         17  both sides agree to that --

         18                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- And what

         20  I'm hearing from you is that there's no agreement on

         21  both sides to do pattern bargaining --

         22                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Not --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- And so

         24  who is using the terminology pattern bargaining and

         25  how do we, I guess, break that cycle?
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          2                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  We tried, the people

          3  who used the term initially are the, are the City.

          4  The term started emerging, I mean pattern bargaining

          5  has been a bargaining technique that people have

          6  used in the past.  It's not used very often anymore

          7  in labor relations in either the private or the

          8  public sector. The City uses it a lot, because as,

          9  and I did not repeat Pat Lynch's testimony, but Pat

         10  I think accurately said the City chooses the first

         11  union it wants to bargain with.

         12                 This, what I didn't go through and

         13  it's amply stated in my testimony, we tried to jump

         14  start bargaining a month after our contract expired

         15  this time.  In May  '03, we actually said, let's go,

         16  let's bargain.  I think we did this about two weeks

         17  before the contract expired and the City, basically,

         18  refused to bargain with us.  We had to go to PERB to

         19  even get them to respond to our demands.  So, we --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Wait a

         21  minute, you're saying that normally from just a

         22  normal point of view, if a contract is expiring

         23  let's say in June of this year, the norm is in labor

         24  relations, and correct me if I'm wrong, you start to

         25  sit down and talk months before.
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          2                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Not two

          4  weeks after.

          5                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Well, it never

          6  happens, it hasn't happened under the Bloomberg

          7  Administration.  What happened this time and maybe

          8  I'll just do it very quickly.  Our contract expired

          9  in May  '03.  Two weeks beforehand we asked for

         10  bargaining.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Two weeks

         12  beforehand?

         13                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Before that.  We got

         14  the first bargaining session in September  '03,

         15  where we presented our demands.  The City refused to

         16  respond to our demands until February  '04 and it

         17  was prompted by us filing an unfair labor practice

         18  before PERB, asking them --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Basically,

         20  failing to bargain.

         21                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Failing to bargain.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         23                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  They then came in

         24  with bargaining demands that said eradicate the

         25  entire contract and that was their demand, that was
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          2  their response in February  '04.  At the same time

          3  as all this was happening, they were bargaining with

          4  DC- 37 and what they then did was say, this becomes

          5  the settlement that you all have to adhere to or

          6  something like this becomes the settlement you have

          7  to adhere to.

          8                 So, in our situation, when the City

          9  would make the argument that everybody waits until

         10  they see what the first settlement is, it was

         11  absolutely untrue.  We actually tried to bargain

         12  well in advance of when DC- 37 was bargaining, but

         13  they refused to bargain with us until they settled

         14  with 37.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So --

         16                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  But, in terms of

         17  your other question --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yeah, how do

         19  we break --

         20                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  -- The --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- This?

         22                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  The, I'm looking for

         23  it, unfortunately I don't have them right in front

         24  of us.  I'm, there are, the Taylor Law statutory

         25  guidelines that are used in either arbitration or in
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          2  fact finding are pretty good guidelines and you

          3  could, if those were the guidelines that were

          4  adopted -- thank you -- if those are the guidelines

          5  that are -- thank you Pat. Isn't that great?  Pat

          6  Lynch gave me the guidelines.  If those are the

          7  guidelines that are adopted, there, and that are

          8  actually used, as Pat Lynch said, they are good

          9  guidelines.  They are revival guidelines.  They talk

         10  about issues that are important to individual

         11  workers, as well as issues that are important to a

         12  municipality.

         13                 But, the other way to break it, was

         14  the way I just suggested, which is instead of

         15  starting at zero, which is what normally, which is

         16  what happens where you start at zero, the City then

         17  says pattern bargaining, that's all I'm going to or

         18  whatever they agreed to with the first union, start

         19  with a template of a COLA and then in terms of

         20  wages, start with a template of a COLA. Now, we do

         21  that in the prevailing wage aspects of the law.

         22  There are some laws that apply to construction work

         23  in the City of New York that has to be paid by the

         24  prevailing wage and then if there are changes, there

         25  are changes.
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          2                 So, there's two different ways of

          3  approaching this.  Pat suggested one way when he

          4  said, really look at these statutory guidelines and

          5  use them faithfully, instead of this unwritten

          6  guideline that has betrumped all else.  Or,

          7  alternatively, start with a COLA, as the template,

          8  as the presumption, and then if the City wants to

          9  bargain down, they would have to try to bargain

         10  down.  If a union wants to bargain up, like Pat or

         11  I, would try to say we need to have competitive

         12  wages, let us bargain up.  But, start with that as a

         13  template.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Now, the,

         15  those are PERB guidelines that you have there?

         16                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Uh-huh.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Is it, do we

         18  have a copy of that?  I mean, I don't, can we have a

         19  copy of that if you don't mind?  Could you give it

         20  to the Sergeant- at- Arms there, Jerry.  Because

         21  those are the guidelines --

         22                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  I note that the

         23  counsel for the PBA is assisting the UFT President

         24  in her testimony.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, you're
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          2  saying if this here, the guidelines is fair, in

          3  essence --

          4                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Were used, if those

          5  guidelines were used faithfully.  Like, if you

          6  looked at the fact finding decision in the UFT

          7  proceeding, the fact finders clearly say the UFT has

          8  clearly proven that the salaries of school teachers

          9  should be comparable with salaries of school

         10  teachers in the suburban communities.  But, then,

         11  two lines later, or two paragraphs later, they say,

         12  but, the pattern trumps, my word, not theirs, trumps

         13  this criteria.  Pattern bargaining is not a criteria

         14  in the statute, but the statute talks to comparable

         15  salaries.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I want

         17  to thank you for coming in and I know that this is

         18  an Oversight Hearing, Mr. Chair, but do we have a

         19  Resolution, which is, you know, the will of the body

         20  basically, I know you talked about that --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right,

         22  minimally, this Committee will formulate a

         23  Resolution based on its testimony given and then,

         24  again, it will be introduced in the City Council

         25  and, hence, the probably second Hearing on the
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          2  Taylor Law, based on the Resolution.

          3                 But, I am, again, I definitely want

          4  to do a Resolution.  It has been approached to me

          5  that we are approaching an issue that is based on

          6  state law and that we are out of our jurisdiction.

          7  But, I'm not intending this Committee to back off of

          8  any issue, even though mandated by state law, that's

          9  going to affect our City workforce.  So, the bottom

         10  line is, we are going to address this issue, and

         11  there will be a Resolution.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I ask

         13  that when you introduce that Resolution, I'd like to

         14  be right behind you as co sponsor --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  No problem, you

         16  got it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- On that

         18  Resolution. Ms. Weingarten, I want to thank you for

         19  coming in and presenting testimony on behalf of the

         20  140,000 members that you represent.  I look forward

         21  to working with you and the other labor unions in

         22  putting together this Resolution, which is the will

         23  of the body, saying that the Taylor Law should be

         24  disbanded.  Thank you --

         25                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Very

          3  much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          5  much Ms. Weingarten.  Our next panel, Carol Pittman

          6  from New York State Nurses Association.  After Ms.

          7  Pittman, it will be Ed Watt from TWU.

          8                 MS. PITTMAN:  Good afternoon Chair

          9  Addabbo, staff, and Council Member Jackson.  My name

         10  is Carol Pittman.  I'm the Community Affairs

         11  Representative for the New York State Nurses

         12  Association.  We're the union for more than 32,000

         13  registered nurses across the state, including the

         14  26,000 who work in the five boroughs of New York

         15  City.  Among them are the 6,400 registered nurses

         16  who work for the New York City Health and Hospitals

         17  Corporation and the Mayoral agencies.

         18                 As our members enter a fourth year

         19  without a contract and you're aware that we are now

         20  at impasse, the way the Taylor Law affects their

         21  lives is upper most in their minds.  In short, the

         22  law severely restricts the tools available to public

         23  employees and their unions as they try to negotiate

         24  fair contracts.

         25                 Every day they are without a
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          2  contracts, our members pay a penalty.  While

          3  contract talks have dragged, the City Health and

          4  Hospitals Corporation has paid its registered nurses

          5  at 2002 rates for more than three years.  The City

          6  can do this because the Taylor Law allows public

          7  employers to drag out contract negotiations as long

          8  as possible for their own financial benefit.

          9                 By delaying the paying of increases,

         10  the employer gains at the expense of their workers.

         11  The law penalizes our nurses by freezing their

         12  salaries.  It places no penalty on the City for

         13  protracting negotiations, a pattern set by this

         14  Administration in every contract negotiation since

         15  Mayor Bloomberg took office.

         16                 Imagine how it would be if you were a

         17  nurse?  Over the past three years, your paycheck has

         18  stayed the same while the price of gasoline has

         19  risen more than 60 percent.  Your paycheck has

         20  stayed the same while your rent has gone up ten

         21  percent, at least.  Your paycheck has stayed the

         22  same while the grocery bill has increased nine

         23  percent.  Your paycheck is the same while your

         24  heating bill has risen more than 70 percent.

         25  Overall, the Consumer Price Index in the New York
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          2  metropolitan area is 11 percent higher than it was

          3  three years ago.  City nurses' salaries have

          4  increased zero percent.

          5                 It's becoming increasingly difficult

          6  for our members to make their rent or mortgage

          7  payments, get back and forth to work, pay for their

          8  children's education, pay property taxes, buy

          9  groceries and take care of their families.  At the

         10  same time, registered nurses are dealing with

         11  increasing levels of stress on the job.  As we

         12  reported last fall, thousands of them have filed

         13  reports of unsafe patient care conditions, mostly

         14  due to understaffing.  They should be receiving

         15  awards from the City for their dedication to

         16  patients.  Instead, they're being penalized for the

         17  City's inaction.

         18                 City negotiators are using the Taylor

         19  Law to take advantage of the growing frustration

         20  felt by the nurses, which any of us would feel in

         21  this position.  All they have to do is wait the

         22  nurses out.  There's no penalty to them, so they can

         23  delay, delay and delay at the bargaining table.  We,

         24  like the other unions who have testified here and

         25  like others who will be testifying, believe that
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          2  this imbalance of power has to be corrected, for the

          3  good of both City workers and City residents.

          4                 Unlike other workers, nurses can vote

          5  with their feet.  They can quit their jobs at public

          6  hospitals and easily find jobs in the private

          7  sector.  There is a $10,000.00 discrepancy between

          8  the base salary of the nurses in the public sector

          9  and those in private sector.  So, the private sector

         10  beckons.

         11                 Many nurses are doing just that.  As

         12  these negotiations have dragged on, there's been a

         13  steady hemorrhage of RNs from City hospitals.  So

         14  that we estimate HHC is now short staffed by about a

         15  thousand RN positions.  This is bad for the

         16  patients, it's bad for the RNs who stay behind and

         17  it's bad for the health of New York City.

         18                 Several pieces of legislation

         19  designed to reform the Taylor Law and several, a

         20  number of excellent suggestions have been made by

         21  the PBA, the UFT, and other unions in the past.

         22  These ideas, such as limiting negotiation periods

         23  with penalties for employers that fail to meet

         24  deadlines, requiring interest payments on

         25  compensation owed from previous years and allowing
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          2  expedited impasse proceedings and a right to binding

          3  arbitration for all employees are definitely things

          4  that NYSNA stands behind. So, all of these proposals

          5  deserve consideration.

          6                 We urge the Members of this Committee

          7  to support Taylor Law reform.  Although, I must say,

          8  I like the suggestion put forward that the Taylor

          9  Law be abolished.  We must create a level playing

         10  field in labor relations in the public sector.  We

         11  must stop penalizing the workers who serve New York

         12  residents. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Ms. Pittman,

         14  thank you very much for being here today.  You have

         15  actually put out a very interesting point in showing

         16  the rising cost of living, while being without a

         17  contract.  That is a very important point to make

         18  for our dedicated workforce throughout the City.  At

         19  this point, let me thank you for the nurses'

         20  dedication to a very important issue of quality

         21  health care.  So, we thank you very much.

         22                 But, we understand that dedication

         23  don't always pay the bills and, you know, a

         24  committed workforce don't always pay the bills and

         25  that's why, again, I agree with you and the others
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          2  who had given testimony previously, that we need to

          3  make sure that the Taylor Law does present itself as

          4  giving a level playing field.  I think we have to

          5  address those issues and seek change on the state

          6  level in order to get that level playing field.  At

          7  this point, I want to welcome Council Member James

          8  Gennaro for being with us today, a Member of this

          9  Committee, and we do have a question from Council

         10  Member Jackson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, let me

         12  just say that I have talked to nurses that work for

         13  the City of New York and they have communicated to

         14  me directly, as a Member of the City Council, how

         15  disappointed they are in their contract negotiations

         16  with the City of New York.  I'm looking, while I was

         17  in the back there, I heard your testimony and I was

         18  not paying as close attention as I needed to.  So,

         19  forgive me, but I am familiar and I'm looking here

         20  and it says that your, our members are entering a

         21  fourth year without a contract.  Four years without

         22  a contract?

         23                 MS. PITTMAN:  Entering the fourth

         24  year.  Our contract expired December 31st of 2002.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  2002.  And,
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          2  it says here in your contract overall, the Consumer

          3  Price Index in New York metropolitan area is 11

          4  percent higher than it was three years ago and that

          5  City nurses' salaries have increased zero percent.

          6  They have not received any increase, even though the

          7  Consumer Price Index, within the past three years,

          8  has gone up 11 percent?

          9                 MS. PITTMAN:  No.  There is no cost

         10  of living provision.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I'm not

         12  trying to get in between, maybe I'm not trying to

         13  get in between your bargaining, but maybe somebody

         14  needs to get in between, in fact, because you've

         15  been four years without a contract.  I just can't

         16  understand what is holding up of getting a contract?

         17                 MS. PITTMAN:  Well, I think that

         18  makes 6,401 of us who don't understand that.  The

         19  City has rejected every offer that we have put on

         20  the table.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Every offer?

         22                 MS. PITTMAN:  Every offer.  And, it's

         23  hard for me at the moment to discuss it in detail

         24  because we are at impasse.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I
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          2  understand.

          3                 MS. PITTMAN:  But, yes, every offer.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, impasse.

          5    So, you have filed, meaning the union has filed

          6  for impasse.  Did you file or did they file? Because

          7  one party or the other can file for impasse.  What

          8  does impasse mean for those, you know, who may not

          9  know.

         10                 MS. PITTMAN:  We filed for impasse.

         11  Impasse is a stage in which, basically, nothing is

         12  happening.  They are not coming forward with

         13  anything we can accept and they are rejecting

         14  everything that we bring to the table and we can

         15  come to no agreement, despite months and months and

         16  months of negotiations. Impasse basically means that

         17  the proceedings are then, then go to a panel that is

         18  impaneled by the Office of Collective Bargaining and

         19  we are in the process of picking the panel.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, now,

         21  but wait a minute.  Now, you heard, you were here,

         22  you heard the testimony of Randi Weingarten --

         23                 MS. PITTMAN:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- The

         25  President of UFT, United Federation of Teachers.
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          2  You've heard the testimony of Pat Lynch, the

          3  President of the PBA, the Policeman's Benevolent

          4  Association.  Basically, Pat Lynch has said you need

          5  to get rid of the OCB totally, in his opinion, and

          6  now you're telling me that NYSNA, the New York State

          7  Nurses Association, which represents approximately

          8  6,500 nurses in New York City, that you have filed

          9  for impasse to the same collective bargaining group

         10  or panel that Pat Lynch said that we need to get rid

         11  of altogether.

         12                 MS. PITTMAN:  Yeah.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Do you

         14  really expect any hope by going to them?

         15                 MS. PITTMAN:  It's ridiculous to go

         16  to the same, to a panel that is empowered by our

         17  counterparts across the table.  However, it is the

         18  option, the other option that is available under the

         19  Taylor Law for us to pursue.  It is not a fair

         20  option.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What option

         22  is that?

         23                 MS. PITTMAN:  Going to impasse.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  No, but you

         25  said the other option to pursue, which is --
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          2                 MS. PITTMAN:  Oh, well, I guess the

          3  other option, you know, negotiations were done.  If,

          4  the Taylor Law prohibits striking by public

          5  employees, that could be an option.  In the private

          6  sector, we do go on strike when we have to.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

          8                 MS. PITTMAN:  Nurses are loathe to

          9  abandon their patients, as you can well imagine, and

         10  that is something that is always uppermost in their

         11  minds.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         13                 MS. PITTMAN:  However, we do, when

         14  necessary, take action when in the private sector.

         15  In the public sector, it is not a venue that's open

         16  to us.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  What is the

         18  average salary of the nurses that you represent in

         19  New York City?

         20                 MS. PITTMAN:  You know, I can't give

         21  you an average because there is a, there are a

         22  number of, there's experience diff and certification

         23  diff and so on, but --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But, I mean

         25   --
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          2                 MS. PITTMAN:  The base, the base

          3  would be about 53.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And does the

          5  nurses in New York City earn more than or less than

          6  the comparable, than nurses in New York City,

          7  because you have, the nurses in your union work for,

          8  I think, the City of New York, is that correct?

          9                 MS. PITTMAN:  Health and Hospitals

         10  Corporation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay, so

         12  they are basically comparable to nurses that are

         13  working in the private hospitals, is that correct?

         14  Like, Columbian Presbyterian, Saint Luke's is

         15  private, right?  North Central --

         16                 MS. PITTMAN:  They do the same kind

         17  of work under --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

         19                 MS. PITTMAN:  -- Not as fabulous

         20  conditions --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

         22                 MS. PITTMAN:  -- For at least ten to

         23  $12,000.00 less --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Less.

         25                 MS. PITTMAN:  -- On their base, yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Less on

          3  their base.

          4                 MS. PITTMAN:  Yes.  So, you know, PBA

          5  and the UFT have recruitment and retention problems

          6   --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Right.

          8                 MS. PITTMAN:  -- So do we,

          9  enormously, because it's a shortage industry, the

         10  nurses can go, can cross the street, basically, from

         11  a public institution and get a higher salary in a

         12  place that is not as short- staffed in the private

         13  sector.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I

         15  don't know, as a Member of the City Council,

         16  legislative body, for me to know that we have a

         17  bargaining unit out there that is going on their

         18  fourth year without a contract is not acceptable.

         19  So, I say to you, you heard us, Chair Addabbo and

         20  myself talked about a Resolution that we will deal

         21  with in the City Council --

         22                 MS. PITTMAN:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- You know,

         24  because it appears as though, based on the testimony

         25  that's coming forward, that the Taylor Law is
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          2  hampering the ability of the unions in negotiating

          3  what they feel are appropriate contracts.  Is that

          4  safe to say?

          5                 MS. PITTMAN:  Absolutely.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, I want

          7  to thank you for coming in and giving testimony on

          8  behalf of, now you represent 6,500 nurses in New

          9  York City, what's the total union membership of

         10  NYSNA?

         11                 MS. PITTMAN:  The total union, those,

         12  these 6,400 nurses work at HHC --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         14                 MS. PITTMAN:  -- And in the Mayorals,

         15  corrections, police, et cetera.  We represent 26,000

         16  who work in New York City in the five boroughs and

         17  32,000 state- wide.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Well, thank

         19  you very much.  Thank you Mr. Chair.

         20                 MS. PITTMAN:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you Ms.

         22  Pittman and I, again, thank you for your time and

         23  testimony.  Just to let you know, we will be having

         24  an Oversight Hearing in a very near future on

         25  nurses' workplace environment and, again, contract
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          2  status, providing it has not been resolved by then.

          3  I'm hopeful it is resolved by then, but if it is

          4  not, this Committee will have an Oversight Hearing

          5  for the nurses.  So, we have that coming up.  Our

          6  next witness is Ed Watt, representing TWU.  Mr.

          7  Watt, just state your full name, title and give your

          8  testimony please.

          9                 MR. WATT:  My name is Ed Watt.  I'm

         10  the Secretary/Treasury of the Transport Workers

         11  Union, Local 100. Before I start my written remarks,

         12  I would just like to comment that I concur in spirit

         13  with the PBA, the UFT and the Nurses Association.  I

         14  particularly concur in the statutory nine percent

         15  interest penalty brought up by the PBA and in that

         16  spirit, would like to point out that there's no

         17  business model that I think any elected official can

         18  point to, which parallel leaving contracts open.  In

         19  fact, just the reverse.  In business, there are

         20  penalties when contract deadlines are not met, as

         21  opposed to incentives for leaving contracts open.

         22  Again, I would challenge any elected official, who,

         23  some of whom have wide experience in business

         24  matters to show us a model.

         25                 Well, it's been nearly 40 years since
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          2  the Taylor Law was passed and it's time to re-

          3  examine it.  I'd like to point out that the, that

          4  most laws are named after legislators and the Taylor

          5  Law was not named after any legislator, no one had

          6  the courage at that time and it was named after, I

          7  believe, a university professor from out of state,

          8  from somewhere in Pennsylvania.  I might be able to

          9  look that up for us.

         10                 The Law was intended to do several

         11  things, to create disincentives for striking, to

         12  strengthen the requirements that employers bargain

         13  in good faith and provide the legal framework for

         14  resolving bargaining disputes that unions can have

         15  confidence in.  While, for the first couple of

         16  decades, after the passage of the Taylor Law, many

         17  may have concluded that the Law had met these

         18  objectives, but today it is difficult to say that.

         19                 Let me talk about some of the flaws

         20  of the Taylor Law.  The Law imposes on public

         21  employers a duty to bargain in good faith.  The Law

         22  creates virtually no incentive on the part of the

         23  public employer to negotiate the terms of the

         24  successor bargaining agreement by the time the

         25  current collective bargaining agreement comes to an
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          2  end.  As a result, we see more and more unions

          3  struggling to achieve new bargaining agreements

          4  months and even years after expiration.  In our

          5  negotiations with MTA bus, this is the entity that

          6  took over the private lines, we are negotiating a

          7  successor agreement to contracts that expired three

          8  years ago Friday.

          9                 With the Transit Authority, we last

         10  finished the contract on December 15, 2002.  That

         11  contract covered the term December 16, 2002 through

         12  December 15, 2005.  Our sister locals ATU- 726 and

         13  ATU- 1056, whose contracts mirror the TWU's, were

         14  only able to achieve parallel agreements two and

         15  one- half years later. That is, they finished their

         16  negotiations in the spring of 2005 for contracts

         17  that covered the period  '02 through  '05.

         18                 Make no mistake, this kind of delay

         19  in settling the terms of a new agreement is painful

         20  and frustrating to unions and their members.  Yet,

         21  there is no cost whatsoever to the employer in

         22  stretching out negotiations as long as possible.

         23  This problem needs to be fixed.  The enforcement

         24  mechanisms of the Taylor Law are disconnected from

         25  the realities of modern labor relations.  For
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          2  example, employers and unions are prohibited from

          3  bargaining about pensions.

          4                 As any New Yorker knows, during 2005,

          5  December, negotiations about pensions played a very

          6  significant part in the bargaining between Local 100

          7  and the MTA.  The MTA sought desperately to get the

          8  union's agreement to a new pension plan for new

          9  employees, considerably more than the current

         10  pension plans costs current employees.

         11                 In fact, when the MTA insisted on

         12  December 16th that this new diminished pension plan

         13  was included in its final offer, we went to the

         14  Public Employment Relations Board to try and get

         15  them to order the MTA to pull it off the table.

         16  Without even acknowledging that the MTA's demand was

         17  prohibited, prohibited subject to bargaining under

         18  PERB, they rejected our request for an injunction.

         19  Why?  Because there was no urgency.

         20                 In PERB's view, the union could keep

         21  bargaining with the MTA even though the contract had

         22  expired.  This is a totally irrational scheme.  The

         23  MTA could insist on a roll back on pensions as part

         24  of its final offer, even though that demand was

         25  unlawful.  The remedy the Taylor Law offers for
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          2  these conundrums is taking the whole matter to

          3  interest arbitration.

          4                 There are three things wrong with

          5  this so- called remedy in our view.  First, interest

          6  arbitration is not collective bargaining.  It is a

          7  process that is controlled by the parties, but

          8  leaves their fate in the hands of third- parties who

          9  have, I'm sorry, who is not controlled by the

         10  parties, but leaves their fate in the hands of

         11  third- parties, who have their own views of the

         12  world and their own assessments of what is important

         13  and just, not the views of the parties themselves.

         14                 We know that not all unions share

         15  this judgment, but it is the judgment of our union

         16  that a deal should be something that our members

         17  have the right to approve by way of ratification.  A

         18  party can bring to interest arbitration only those

         19  issues that meet certain definitions and do not

         20  necessarily accord with the interest of the modern

         21  day work force.

         22                 For example, a union does not have

         23  the right to bring to arbitration a claim that there

         24  should be improvements in the pension that employees

         25  are working for.  The union does not have the right
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          2  to bring to arbitration that there should be

          3  improvements in health benefits afforded to

          4  retirees.  These issues are extremely important to

          5  our workforce and provisions on these issues are

          6  often included in our collective bargaining

          7  agreements.  But, when we are forced to arbitration,

          8  we can be forced to lay these claims aside.

          9                 Interest arbitration becomes a

         10  completely different creature than the bargaining

         11  which preceded it.  The most important issues in

         12  that bargaining are not even heard by the interest

         13  arbitrators, who end up focusing on substitutes for

         14  what the parties really want.  Interest arbitration

         15  can become the refuge of employers who really have

         16  no intention of bargaining at all.

         17                 One of the worst features of the

         18  MTA's approach to negotiations this past fall, was

         19  that the MTA pushed for interest arbitration instead

         20  of bargaining.  On November 29th, the MTA's chief

         21  negotiator sent us a request that we submit the

         22  dispute to interest arbitration.  At that time, the

         23  MTA had still not even put on the table a wage

         24  proposal or, for that matter, any economic proposal.

         25                 That proposal would not come until
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          2  December 7th and the MTA would not make any serious

          3  movement from the first, from that first proposal

          4  until the night the contract expired. Finally, in

          5  January, the MTA petitioned for interest

          6  arbitration, not the union, and there is no pressing

          7  need for the MTA to do that.  Until a new agreement

          8  was reached, none of the improvements the union

          9  sought in negotiations would take effect. The MTA

         10  had only one reason to seek arbitration, with

         11  arbitration it would not have to bargain with the

         12  union.

         13                 Finally, the disincentives the Taylor

         14  Law imposes for striking are not properly

         15  calibrated.  For example, the Law recognizes that

         16  employer misconduct can be provocative.  For

         17  example, insisting on a prohibitive subject of

         18  bargaining, like a diminishing of the pension

         19  benefit can be provocative.  The Law provides that

         20  employer provocation can be taken into account to

         21  reduce penalties assessed against the union.  But,

         22  there is no penalty for public employers for this

         23  misconduct.  That kind of unequal treatment is not

         24  in the public interest.  Employers need a greater

         25  incentive to play by the rules and negotiate in good
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          2  faith.  For those present who are trained in the

          3  Law, that defense is only discretionary.

          4                 Likewise, the penalties against

          5  individual members are irrational.  Everyone has

          6  heard of the two for one penalties assessed against

          7  individual employees.  They lose two day's pay for

          8  every day they're on strike.  But, these penalties

          9  can lead to really stupid results.  Let me give you

         10  an example.  Local 100 called its members back to

         11  work when the MTA agreed it could settle a contract

         12  without the roll back in pension that it had been

         13  insisting upon.  That was in the early afternoon of

         14  December 22, 2005.

         15                 The union urges its members to return

         16  as quickly as possible, so that the bus and subway

         17  service could be restored as quickly as possible.

         18  Many of our members immediately returned to duty and

         19  even though they were in the middle of their regular

         20  tour of duty, those who worked part of their tour of

         21  duty that day earned money for the time they worked.

         22  But, in implementing two for one penalties, the TA

         23  has taken away that pay.  Those employees are out of

         24  pocket exactly the same amount as others employees

         25  who did not come in to finish their tour, but, or
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          2  weren't able to because their tour had finished

          3  already, but waited until the next day.

          4                 The TA claims that this is how the

          5  Law is written. It does not matter that the employee

          6  worked part of his or her tour, they lose money in

          7  the same amount that an employee who did not work

          8  any of that tour.  I don't think I need to elaborate

          9  on this too much for everyone to see how stupid it

         10  is.  If you treat those who came into work the same

         11  as you treat those who did not, then the message

         12  will be clear, don't bother to come back to work.

         13  This, I might add, is probably in violation of the

         14  Fair Labor Standards Act, because people came into

         15  work and worked six hours and yet they were still

         16  penalized.  In their view, they were penalized more

         17  because they actually worked and they're right.

         18                 So, what kind of public employer

         19  would do this? The MTA, obviously, one that does not

         20  care about the public interest in restoring service

         21  as soon as possible, only whose interest, one whose

         22  interest is in provoking employee discontent. What

         23  is to be done?  A couple of things quickly. One,

         24  strengthen the Taylor Law, so that employers have a

         25  real incentive to reach a deal before the expiration
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          2  of a contract. Two, strengthen the Law so that the

          3  arbitration is not used as a substitute for real

          4  bargaining.  Three, change the penalty scheme so

          5  that employers are penalized for improper conduct

          6  and any penalties against unions and their members

          7  are better calibrated and rationalized.  I'd like to

          8  thank you, Mr. Chairman, and the Members of your

          9  Committee, for the opportunity to give testimony

         10  today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Watt, thank

         12  you very much for your time and testimony.  Before I

         13  get to any questions my colleague may have, just a

         14  couple of my own.  You had mentioned the history of

         15  the Taylor Law.  Obviously it's predecessed (sic) to

         16  the Condon- Wadlin Act, that the workers were fired

         17  if, obviously, if they went on strike, which is

         18  still a possibility under the Taylor Law, although

         19  now the Taylor Law shifted it to a criminal and

         20  civil penalty.  Do you think this is a watering down

         21  effect by having the criminal and civil penalties,

         22  or was this the right move for the Taylor Law to

         23  move into?

         24                 MR. WATT:  Well, if the goal is to

         25  prevent strikes, the Taylor Law is almost as much of
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          2  a failure as the Condon- Wadlin Act that you

          3  referred to, because, obviously, in December it did

          4  not prevent a strike.

          5                 The strike in December was provoked

          6  by the MTA by a number of issues, which, because it

          7  is still under, a matter before the courts, I would

          8  not elaborate on, but some of the very public things

          9  were Chairman Kalikow showing up at the last minute,

         10  11:00 the night before, that complaint was echoed by

         11  President Randi Weingarten of the UFT as same,

         12  spending a billion dollar surplus the day before the

         13  contract expired, slicing a piece off and 16,000

         14  disciplines a year and et cetera, et cetera, et

         15  cetera.

         16                 In fact, there's a report done by the

         17  Institute for Work Place Studies at Cornell

         18  University, which I'll get you a copy of for the

         19  Committee, that, that actually documents and

         20  validates all of the things that the union has been

         21  saying anecdotally, but it scientifically validates

         22  those things.

         23                 So, the Taylor Law was a carbon copy,

         24  so to speak, of the National Labor Relations Act,

         25  but in the National Labor Relations Act, there are
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          2  unfair labor practices, which apply to employers.

          3  That's all we're saying, don't abolish the Taylor

          4  Law because it actually provides for representation

          5  and it does provide for some improper practices and,

          6  but it needs to, to account for unfair labor

          7  practices in the actual collective bargaining and

          8  negotiation sessions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You mentioned

         10  that other labor laws do have a component for both

         11  sides and I think that's where the Taylor Law is

         12  lacking.  That's obviously going to be a target for

         13  this Committee post this Hearing, subsequent to this

         14  Hearing.

         15                 You had mentioned the penalties

         16  imposed, two days for every one day and obviously

         17  the improper allocation or implementation of that

         18  law to the situation of TWU.  Obviously, some of the

         19  numbers, items that were deducted from an employee's

         20  paycheck was printed up in the papers recently.  Can

         21  you elaborate on how that works against each of your

         22  membership or each of the workers penalized?

         23                 MR. WATT:  Well, the day, again, I'm

         24  not an attorney, but the day that you didn't work is

         25  counted as one day and then there's a fine of the
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          2  entire day's pay.  So, if you made ten hours at,

          3  what's your usual pay, at $20.00 an hour, you would

          4  have $200.00 subtracted from your net, from your

          5  post- tax -- $700.00 in a two week period, you would

          6  be taking home the, a day and a half, so you would

          7  be taking home $400.00 instead of $700.00.  That's

          8  what our members will live through this week, if

          9  that's what you wanted a flavor of.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  In looking at

         11  the penalties and taking a step back and looking at

         12  this situation regarding TWU, do you think that this

         13  is a deterrent to striking?  Only because a lot of

         14  people are watching what happens here since that the

         15  TWU most recently has tested the Taylor Law.  It was

         16  tested in the  '70's with the Sanitation workers.  I

         17  believe, again in the  '80's with TWU.  But, now,

         18  most recently, this past year with, you know,

         19  another testing of the Taylor Law.  I think a lot of

         20  people are looking at this situation as, it's going

         21  to set a standard or a bar in future negotiations

         22  and future employee actions.

         23                 In the big picture, as you step back,

         24  do you think TWU, at this point, came out ahead in

         25  light of the Taylor Law? Do you think that, I know,
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          2  as you said, the penalties were imposed were stupid,

          3  but how do you think, in looking back, the big

          4  picture, how does it look to you in thinking that

          5  other people are looking at this situation?

          6                 MR. WATT:  Well, I can't speak for

          7  any other people or any other union.  So, I like the

          8  fact that you, you peppered your question with some

          9  history there, because I believe it was in 1970 the

         10  police department went on strike, under the Taylor

         11  Law, for five days.  Teachers have gone on strike,

         12  under the Taylor Law, as you pointed out.

         13  Sanitation workers have gone on strike.  Corrections

         14  officers in the state have gone on strike as

         15  recently, I think, as  '88 or  '89.    Local 802, I

         16  believe it was, of AFSCME, in 19 I think 72, there

         17  were 32 strikes in the public sector alone in New

         18  York City.

         19                 So, you know, again, from an

         20  historical perspective the, the, the fiscal crisis

         21  of the  '70's had more to do with curbing strikes

         22  than, than any legislation necessarily had to do

         23  with it.  So, that's in your, in your little step

         24  back look at the whole picture.

         25                 But, I'd like to speak about transit
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          2  workers now. Plus, the 70 percent of our members

          3  were ready and willing to strike for a week or more.

          4    More than 85 percent of our members knew exactly

          5  what the Taylor Law finds were and after the strike,

          6  without, as late as this month, without a contract,

          7  65 percent of our members said it was the right

          8  thing to do.

          9                 So, again, to refer to the, the study

         10  done by Cornell, when our employees are

         11  systematically abused by the MTA, when 50 percent of

         12  them more than once a week have to worry about where

         13  to go to the bathroom, where to eat their lunch,

         14  such basic things that people put up with on a

         15  regular basis, that anger is going to build over the

         16  long term and a day's pay or two days' pay or four

         17  days' or six days' or eight days' or ten days' pay,

         18  obviously, is not going to make a difference.

         19                 So, what you need is you need

         20  incentives for the employer to come to the, come to

         21  the table and bargain in good faith and you need,

         22  obviously, to change from a discretionary defense to

         23  whatever an allowed defense is, again, I'm not any

         24  attorney, for that to be a defense.  Because, in

         25  this case, it was very, very clear that the MTA
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          2  thought that its, that its employees thought far too

          3  much of their rights and that they needed to be

          4  slapped down with a strike and they were going to

          5  produce one and they did.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  In preparation

          7  of this Hearing, I did look at the past history of

          8  the Taylor Law and I was actually quite surprised by

          9  some of the results --

         10                 MR. WATT:  I wasn't far off, was I?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  No, you're not

         12  and I appreciate, you know, filling in the gaps.

         13  But, again, in looking at the past history,

         14  hopefully, we can correct the future.  I would

         15  remiss if I didn't ask you this question, because

         16  it's a common question amongst my constituency as

         17  I'm sure amongst others in the City.  Should they be

         18  concerned of a future strike should this delay in

         19  negotiations go on?

         20                 MR. WATT:  Joe, let me just say, as

         21  one of your constituents, nobody wants to go on

         22  strike.  Nobody wants to go on strike, okay?  We

         23  were pushed into this strike quite visibly, quite

         24  publicly and President Toussaint, on the steps of

         25  City Hall not too long ago said that it's unlikely.
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          2  We are not in the business of making empty threats.

          3  So, I don't, I don't believe that there is much of a

          4  chance in the near future of Transit workers going

          5  on strike.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any, again --

          7                 MR. WATT:  I can't rule anything out

          8  forever, but.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I understand

         10  and quite clear and I appreciate that.  You've heard

         11  of some of the suggestions that were mentioned

         12  earlier by previous, those who previously gave

         13  testimony.  Do you want to weigh in on some of the

         14  suggestions that may wind up in some form of

         15  legislative language, whether it be here at City

         16  Hall or up in Albany?

         17                 MR. WATT:  I look forward to working

         18  with those who have given testimony on that and I

         19  concur in spirit with those.  The particular, the

         20  particulars, again, I like the statutory interest

         21  part, but.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  We are going to

         23  look into that and, again, I look forward to working

         24  with you on that part. A statement from my

         25  colleague, Jim Gennaro.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you.

          3  Thank you Mr. Chairman.  Yeah, I don't really have a

          4  question to ask, I just wanted to be recognized to

          5  thank you for all of your work in the labor

          6  movement.  We look forward to working with you.  I

          7  just, you know, want to wish you and all the

          8  leadership of Local 100 the best of luck and to

          9  getting things passed this time.  That would be a

         10  good thing.  I see you proudly have your button on,

         11  encouraging people to --

         12                 MR. WATT:  Vote yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  -- Vote yes.

         14    I'm for that.  I'm for that Mr. Chairman.  Okay?

         15  Thank you.  Thank you Mr. Chairman.  Thank you Ed.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you

         17  Council Member Gennaro.  Mr. Watt, I'm going to ask

         18  you a question which I think I know the answer

         19  already.  The Public Employees Fair Employment Act,

         20  is it fair? Which is also the Taylor Law.  The

         21  Public Employees Fair Employment Act, is it fair?

         22                 MR. WATT:  Fair?  If it's the Taylor

         23  Law, no, it's not fair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  It is the

         25  Taylor Law and I sort of knew your answer.  Again,
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          2  Ed, I appreciate your time and testimony today --

          3                 MR. WATT:  Thank you for this

          4  opportunity.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  -- And do I

          6  look forward to working with you on surely which is

          7  a, this is the first step and I'm sure we'll have

          8  other steps to take with the State Legislature.  So,

          9  thank you very much.

         10                 MR. WATT:  Okay, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thanks Ed.  Our

         12  next witness is Gregory Floyd of Local 237.  Mr.

         13  Floyd, thank you for your patience.  Nice to see

         14  you.  Ms. Stryker, good to see you as well.  Just

         15  please give your name, your title and testimony

         16  please.

         17                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes.  Good afternoon.  My

         18  name is Gregory Floyd.  I'm the Secretary/Treasurer

         19  for Local 237 Teamsters.  We represent over 24,000

         20  members in New York City and Long Island.  We're the

         21  largest teamster local in the International

         22  Brotherhood of Teamsters and we represent all public

         23  sector workers.

         24                 In the interest of time, I'm not

         25  going to read my whole testimony.  I'll just go
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          2  right to the points that weren't made.  There are

          3  many ways the Taylor Law could be made more fair and

          4  balanced for our workers.  When an employer is found

          5  in violation of the Taylor Law, employees would

          6  receive a one percent salary increase, if the

          7  existing collective bargaining agreement had

          8  expired.  The PERB would be required to appoint a

          9  mediator, who would not only assist with the

         10  resolution of parties' beginning, bargaining

         11  dispute, but who would periodically report to PERB

         12  as whether the employer was continuing to refuse to

         13  negotiate in good faith.

         14                 If these violations continued to

         15  occur, an additional one- half percent salary

         16  increase would occur every three months until the

         17  employer had agreed to bargain in good faith.  Also,

         18  these amounts could not be used by employers to

         19  offset any future negotiations.  To ensure fairness,

         20  an employer would owe no salary increase if the

         21  union also refused to negotiate in good faith.

         22                 Currently, we were in negotiations

         23  with the City of New York and we received a similar

         24  contract to DC- 37.  We only wanted to make some

         25  minor changes to that contract.  We didn't want to
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          2  have our contract loaded in the front end.  In other

          3  words, we did not want to hurt the people coming in,

          4  or what we call the unborn, as much as the contract

          5  calls for.  We wanted to restructure it and we

          6  wanted to extend our contract going out. This way,

          7  we would share what the City deemed pattern

          8  bargaining, we would share that cost savings over

          9  the entire membership, rather than balancing it on

         10  the backs of the unborn.

         11                 That modification couldn't take place

         12  for over a year.  The City made us wait for over a

         13  year just negotiating that one change and we did not

         14  get any more of an increase than DC- 37 received.

         15  But, the City, with their bargaining, made us wait

         16  for over a year, just to make those minor changes.

         17  So, those are, that is just one instance where even

         18  though there's pattern bargaining, the City still

         19  made us wait an extra year just to make minor

         20  changes to the contract.

         21                 Also, I wanted to point out, in the

         22  1991,  '94 contract, all City unions, all municipal

         23  labor workers received 18 months of zeros.  In the

         24  next contract, under the Giuliani Administration,

         25  because that was done under the Dinkins
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          2  Administration, the 1994/1999 contract, we received

          3  two years of zeros.

          4                 So, we received three and a half

          5  years of no increase, which, today, is being felt,

          6  because that's three and a half years of no

          7  increase, which is ten percent and that's compounded

          8  every year.  It's compounded going into your pension

          9  and your future earnings.  And, when the City has a

         10  surplus, not once has the City said, you know

         11  something, the municipal workforce has helped us out

         12  with pension changes, they've helped us out with

         13  health care changes, they've helped us out by taking

         14  zeros, we have a little extra money, we're going to

         15  give the municipal workers a little extra.  That has

         16  not been done.

         17                 What has been done was, oh, we have

         18  extra money, so what we're going to do is we're

         19  going to cut taxes in my election year, so that I

         20  could give every homeowner extra money and the

         21  municipal workforce will have to dig in their

         22  pockets deeper and more in the future because I want

         23  more changes, because they're being paid too well.

         24                 So, I don't understand the rationale

         25  behind negotiations, as the City said, well we have
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          2  patter bargaining, the Taylor Law is fair.  If

          3  somebody could please just make me understand where

          4  the fairness is, I would just be quiet.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Well, I'm sure

          6  if the Administration was here, Mr. Floyd, they'd

          7  try to tell you how fair it is, but, unfortunately,

          8  all they sent was a statement. Ms. Stryker, do you

          9  want to add anything to that?

         10                 MS. STRYKER:  Thank you very much.  I

         11  hadn't intended to say anything at all, except

         12  sitting here listening, it brought to mind something

         13  that I spoke to Mr. Floyd about, a conference that I

         14  attended last week, put on by the International

         15  Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans, and I will

         16  share the information.

         17                 One of the speakers was a professor

         18  from the University of Toronto, who spoke about

         19  demographics in the workforce, the labor force, of

         20  the present and in the future. I'll be very brief,

         21  it is really scary, because we really need to cajole

         22  people to come into public service to make it better

         23  and not to make it worse, because young people today

         24  are not like young people 20 years ago, 40 years

         25  ago.  You're not going to be able to bring these
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          2  people in because they'll take a hike and they'll go

          3  where it's good.

          4                 This professor was brilliant and she

          5  laid it out with a sense of humor and it started at

          6  eight in the morning and if you can have people

          7  laughing at 8:15 in the morning at a conference, I

          8  think you're pretty good.  So, I just wanted to

          9  bring it to your attention in that it was done in a

         10  way that was so illuminating because I had never

         11  thought of it in this way.

         12                 Of course, we all talk about the baby

         13  boomers going out the door, but to look at the

         14  generation x, generation y, and then the present

         15  young people, why would anyone want to come into

         16  public service, when they're talking about

         17  diminution of pensions, paying for your health care

         18  and let's face it folks, the working conditions in

         19  some of these places are horrendous. So, something

         20  to think about.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  It is a lot to

         22  think about. Just for the point of clarification for

         23  the record, can you mention the titles of your

         24  membership, basically who are these workers that you

         25  represent?
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          2                 MR. FLOYD:  We represent most of the

          3  members in the Housing Authority.  We represent

          4  everyone from care takers all the way up to the

          5  managers.  We represent school safety, hospital

          6  police, CUNY campus peace officers.  We have

          7  maintenance workers, elevator mechanics who work for

          8  the City agencies.  We have cement masons.  We have

          9  over 200 titles both in New York City and also in

         10  Long Island  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, it's  --

         12                 MR. FLOYD:  -- And Nassau and

         13  Suffolk.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  -- A vast array

         15  of titles doing a vast array of jobs for the City --

         16                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  -- And yet

         18  years without a contract.  Obviously, you know, you

         19  bring out the great point that, once again, the cost

         20  of living increases go up.  You are forced, you

         21  know, to stay on the job but, obviously, there is no

         22  force to give incentive to the other side to

         23  negotiate in what it termed in that very arbitrary

         24  term of good faith, correct?

         25                 MR. FLOYD:  Yes and I also want to
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          2  point out that most of our members are City

          3  residents.  They have to live in the City to work

          4  for the City.  They pay City taxes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That's a good

          6  point.  Any comments or questions from my

          7  colleagues?  I want to thank you both very much for

          8  being here today and definitely you will be a part

          9  of the future discussion on this Taylor Law

         10  situation.

         11                 MR. FLOYD:  Thank you.  Thank you for

         12  having this Hearing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         14  much.  Our last witness for today is Mike Cohen.

         15  Mike, please step forward. Before Mr. Cohen gets to

         16  the table, I would just like to remind those and

         17  inform others that Mr. Cohen was a member of the

         18  Assembly from 1999 to 2004.  I want to welcome him

         19  back here to the City, City Council.  Pleasure.  I'm

         20  sure you may have, at some point in your testimony

         21  weigh in since were a member of the assembly, weigh

         22  in on what you heard in Albany about the Taylor Law,

         23  but it's good to have you here Mike.

         24                 MR. COHEN:  Are we good now?  We're

         25  good now. Thank you.  Prior to my tenure in the
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          2  legislature, I had a real job.  I worked for the New

          3  York City Transit Authority and, in fact, in 1980, I

          4  was a bus driver when TWU and ATU went out on an 11

          5  day strike.  I was assessed nine days, nine days'

          6  pay.

          7                 The reason why I'm bringing it to

          8  your attention, to my amazement and chagrin, in

          9  1980, when the deductions were made off the

         10  paycheck, my assessment of what one day was, was not

         11  the same as what the New York City Transit Authority

         12  was.  The assessment of, of a day's fine was made at

         13  gross pay and the fine was paid back on net pay.

         14  So, it's very obvious that the workers were, in

         15  essence, being fined more than one day.

         16                 Certainly, when we talk about state

         17  legislation, perhaps the City Council if, in the

         18  future, some City employee should go on strike, the

         19  City Council could ensure that City employers truly

         20  assess their workers just a day's pay and no more.

         21                 If I might, I'm speaking an

         22  unfiltered thought here provoked by some of the

         23  testimony and to a question that was posed, did the

         24  imposition of fines act as a deterrent.  I can speak

         25  for myself and I think most of my co- workers that I
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          2  knew in Queens at that time, what weighed heavily

          3  upon us was the inconvenience to the ridership of

          4  New York City and the damage that we were going to

          5  do to the economy of New York City.  That was

          6  something very much on our consciousness.  Fines?

          7  No.  It was nowhere on our radar screen.

          8                 In fact, everybody here is too young,

          9  it was 1980, I'm getting a pension check tomorrow

         10  because Mike Quill (phonetic) died in jail in  '66.

         11  So what if I have to pay some fines.  We have a

         12  responsibility to the workers that came before us

         13  and a responsibility to future generations of

         14  Transit workers. The fines were nowhere, anywhere on

         15  our consciousness.  So, I said I would be brief and

         16  I hope I've been brief.  I just wanted to share that

         17  with you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  It's a good

         19  shared story, because, what has happened in the past

         20  is very, again, similar to what has happened just

         21  recently.  To give us that insight, I do appreciate

         22  it.  But, I love the suggestions about how do we

         23  address the issues of the Taylor Law and its

         24  fairness.  Going forward, how can we level the

         25  playing field? Whether it be reduction of the
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          2  penalty or whether it be just to re- evaluate the

          3  incentives to negotiate on both sides, I think, is

          4  important.

          5                 Your insight as a former New York

          6  City Transit worker who had gone on strike and the,

          7  I guess, mindset of that, who went on strike, that

          8  you didn't mind the penalty, you were more concerned

          9  with the public and in talking to some of the recent

         10  employees who went on strike under TWU, in speaking

         11  to some of them, they, too, were reluctant not in

         12  the sense of going on strike, but, again, mindful of

         13  what effect it would have on the public.  I

         14  appreciate that perspective as well.  But, I think

         15  this is important because as we flush out the

         16  issues, to hear both sides and to hear a former

         17  employee's perspective, as opposed to the union

         18  representative's perspective, I think is fresh and I

         19  appreciate your time here today.

         20                 MR. COHEN:  Just a moment more on a

         21  legislator's perspective.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Please.

         23                 MR. COHEN:  Could have been the first

         24  bill I introduced was the, I think it was referred

         25  to as statutory penalty and my bill wasn't nine
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          2  percent, it was something else. The bill failed to

          3  gain traction for two reasons.  Number one, I

          4  realized at the time, this is  '99, shall we say

          5  with the perspective of the New York State Senate,

          6  this was going to be a one house bill and I wasn't

          7  going to put a lot of time into a one house bill.

          8                 Secondly, some comments from unions

          9  and there wasn't a big push to get behind this one

         10  house bill because they felt that whatever penalty

         11  would be assessed against the employer, that would

         12  simply come off the top of the bargaining agreement

         13  and in essence, there would be no gain by assessing

         14  a penalty.  So, the trick here would be to somehow

         15  isolate the penalty from the total per capita wage

         16  agreement.  So, I just wanted to add that comment on

         17  that matter.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And I'm glad

         19  that's part of the record because like I said

         20  earlier, basically, that, along with the other

         21  testimony, is going to be culminated into figuring

         22  out how do we address this issue in talking to our

         23  counterparts up in Albany.  So, I'm glad that has

         24  become part of the record. I know we have a

         25  statement from Council Member Gennaro.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you.

          3  Thank you Mr. Cohen, Mike, for, I just want to

          4  follow- up on what the Chairman said on giving this,

          5  you know, terrific perspective.  I wanted to wait

          6  until you testified because I want to get the

          7  benefit of your wisdom on this subject, as Joe said,

          8  having been on sort of both sides of the table, a

          9  worker, you know, laboring in the vineyard, so to

         10  speak, being a legislator and also understanding

         11  what goes through the mind of labor negotiators.

         12                 So, you have a grasp on this issue

         13  that I don't think any other witness heretofore in

         14  the Hearing really brings. I appreciate you for

         15  willing to share your wisdom with us and thank you

         16  and I wish you all the best.

         17                 MR. COHEN:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you

         19  Council Member Gennaro.  Mike, thank you very much

         20  for being here.

         21                 MR. COHEN:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Ladies and

         23  gentlemen, I want to thank you and all those who had

         24  testified today for their testimony.  Again, I look

         25  forward to digesting this testimony and going
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          2  forward in addressing the issues raised by the

          3  Taylor Law. Thank you very much and have a good day.

          4                 This meeting is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 3:05 p.m.)
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